
 

 

Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District Five 

 
Brett Sanders 

V. Chairman, District Four 

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | www.andersoncountysc.org 
 
 

John B. Wright, Jr. 
District One 

 
Glenn Davis 

District Two 

Ray Graham 
District Three 

 
Jimmy Davis 

District Six 

M. Cindy Wilson 
District Seven 

 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

 
 
 

Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

 
 
 

AGENDA  
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

Special Presentation Meeting 
Tuesday, July 19, 2022 
Historic Courthouse 
101 S. Main Street 

Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. RESOLUTIONS/PROCLAMATION: 
 
   a. 2022-037: A Resolution congratulating the Crescent High School Anglers on being named the 2022 Palmetto  
       Boat Center Tournament Trail High School of the Year. 
 

Hon. Ray Graham 
 
   b. 2022-038: A Resolution to congratulate Anna Kay and Elizabeth Pamphilon for winning 2022 TBF High 
       School Fishing World Finals Top Female Team. 

Hon. Ray Graham 
 

 
3. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
AGENDA 

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 
Tuesday, July 19, 2022, at 6:30 p.m. 

Historic Courthouse 
101 S. Main Street 

Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

 
 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER     
 
 
 
2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE                                                        Hon. Cindy Wilson 
 
 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES                                                     minutes not received June 21, 2022, June 29, 2022 
 



 
 
Anderson County Council Special Called Meeting Agenda, July 19, 2022 
 
Page 2 

 

   
 

 
 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS                                                                                                        Agenda Matters Only  
 
 
 
5. LEADERSHIP ANDERSON PRESENTATION 

Mr. John Wright, Jr. (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
 
 
6. ORDINANCE THIRD READING: NONE    

 
 

 
 
7. ORDINANCE SECOND READING:  
 
    a. 2022-028: An Ordinance authorizing the transfer of certain real properties located within the town limits of 

Honea Path, South Carolina which were part of the Neighborhood Initiative Program to the Town of Honea 
Path; and other matters related thereto. 

Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

 
 
    b. 2022-029: An Ordinance authorizing the transfer of certain real properties located within the city limits of 

Belton, South Carolina which were part of the Neighborhood Initiative Program to the City of Belton; and other 
matters related thereto. 

Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
 
8. ORDINANCE FIRST READING: 
 
     
    a. 2022-015: An Ordinance adopting and enacting a new code for Anderson County, South Carolina; providing 

for the repeal of certain ordinances not included therein; providing a penalty for the violation thereof; providing 
for the manner of amending such code; and providing when such code and this ordinance shall become 
effective. 

Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
 

    b. 2022-025: An Ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax agreement by and 
between Anderson County, South Carolina, and Project Fiddler with respect to certain economic development 
property in the County, whereby such property will be subject to certain payments in lieu of taxes; and other 
matters related thereto. [Project Fiddler] 

 
Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 

    c. 2022-030: An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business 
park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the park; and other matters related 
thereto. 

Mr. Burriss Nelson ( allotted 5 minutes) 
 



 
 
Anderson County Council Special Called Meeting Agenda, July 19, 2022 
 
Page 3 

 

   
 

    d. 2022-031: An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as adopted 
July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 35.16 acres from C-2 
(Highway Commercial District) to IZD (Innovative Zoning District) on parcels of land, identified as on 
Hurricane Road and Pine Lane in the Denver-Sandy Springs Precinct shown in Deed Book 6546 page 302 and 
Deed Book 6985 page 37. The parcels are further identified as TMS #93-00-07-004 and #93-00-07-005. 

 
Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
     e. 2022-032: An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as adopted 

July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 19.1 acres from C-2 
(Highway Commercial District) to IZD (Innovative Zoning District) on a parcel of land, identified as on 
Highway 76 in the Denver-Sandy Springs Precinct shown in Deed Book 19V page 955. The parcels are further 
identified as TMS #65-00-04-013. 

 
Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 
9. RESOLUTIONS:  
 
    a. R2022-036: A Resolution to state the commitment of Anderson County to enter into a fee agreement with a 

company known for the time being as “Project Fiddler”, and/or its respective designees or nominees; to provide 
the general terms of the fee agreement; to identify the respective projects for purposes of the fee in lieu of Tax 
Simplification Act; to state the commitment of Anderson County to place the project’s subject property in a 
multi-county park; and to provide for other matters related thereto. 

    
Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
    b. R2022-040: A Resolution to support and recognize Anderson County’s designation of Upcountry Fiber, LLC, 

as a preferred partner in their respective service area for broadband by applying for applications for funding 
assistance to unserved and underserved areas of Anderson County through the South Carolina Office of 
Regulatory Staff; and other matters related thereto. 

Mr. Leon Harmon (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
 

10. CHANGE ORDERS/BID APPROVALS: 
    
     a. Bid #22-062 Parker Bowie Convenience Center 
     b. Bid #22-062 Cryptocurrency Mining 

Mr. Rusty Burns  
 

 
11. THE GOLDEN YEARS JAMBOREE SUPPORT OF THE LOT PROJECT INC. 

Mr. Rusty Burns 
 

 
 
12. REPORT FROM PLANNING AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON JULY 15, 

2022 
Ms. Cindy Wilson (allotted 10 minutes) 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Anderson County Council Special Called Meeting Agenda, July 19, 2022 
 
Page 4 

 

   
 

13. EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
       
      a. Legal advice subject to the Attorney-Client privilege regarding Anderson County/Iva Memorandum of    

Understanding 
      b. Legal advice subject to the Attorney-Client privilege regarding the Memorandum of Understanding for a 

regional wastewater treatment facility. 
      c. Action following Executive Session 
 
14. APPOINTMENTS: 
      
     a. Planning Commission Appointment                                                                                       Mr. John Wright, Jr. 
 
 
 
15. REQUESTS BY COUNCIL: 
       
      a. Anderson Jets Track Club-All Districts 
      b. Homeland Park Fire Department- District 2 & District 5 
      c. Tackling the Streets-All Districts 
      d. Watkins Community Center-District 7  
 
 
16. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT: 
     
     a. Budget Transfers 
     b. Special Projects 
     c. Paving 
 
 
   
 
 
17. CITIZENS COMMENTS               Non-Agenda Matters 
 
 
18. REMARKS FROM COUNCIL 
 
 
 
19. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication, or a 

modification of policies or procedures in order to participate in this program, service 
or activity please contact the office of the program, service or activity as soon as 

possible but no later than 24 hours before the scheduled event. For assistance, please 
contact the Clerk to Council at (864) 260-1036. 



RESOLUTION R2022-037 
 

A RESOLUTION CONGRATULATING THE CRESCENT HIGH SCHOOL 
ANGLERS ON BEING NAMED THE 2022 PALMETTO BOAT CENTER 

TOURNAMENT TRAIL HIGH SCHOOL OF THE YEAR. 
 

Whereas the Crescent High School Anglers was established in 2013 as one of 
the first school teams in the region and has grown to include middle school and 
high school anglers from across the County, having competed in the TBF World 
Finals in Wisconsin, the BASS National Championships, and other events in 
and out of South Carolina, in doing so helping pioneer what has become a 
rapidly growing school sport across the country; and 
 
Whereas the Crescent High School Anglers competed this season in the 
Palmetto Boat Center High School Tournament Trail, winning three events 
and finishing second in three events as an overall school, thus winning the title 
of 2022 High School of the Year over dozens of larger schools across South 
Carolina, Georgia, and North Carolina. 
 
Now, therefore, be it resolved that the Anderson County Council hereby 
congratulates the Crescent High School Anglers team members and coaches, 
expresses the community’s pride in their accomplishments, and thanks them 
for representing Anderson County so well on the national and international 
stage. 
 
Resolved in a meeting duly assembled this 19th day of July 2022. 

 
 
FOR ANDERSON COUNTY  ATTEST 
 
 
 
____________________   ____________________ 
Ray Graham     Rusty Burns 
County Council     County Administrator 
District Three     
 
      ____________________ 
      Renee Watts 

Clerk to Council 



RESOLUTION R2022-038 
 

A RESOLUTION TO CONGRATULATE ANNA KAY AND ELIZABETH 
PAMPHILON ON WINNING 2022 TBF HIGH SCHOOL FISHING WORLD 

FINALS TOP FEMALE TEAM. 
 

Whereas Anna Kay and Elizabeth Pamphilon are rising seniors at Crescent 
High School and members of the Crescent High School Anglers; and 
 
Whereas Ms. Kay and Ms. Pamphilon recently competed in the 2022 TBF High 
School Fishing World Finals, held June 22nd through June 24th on Pickwick 
Lake in Florence, Alabama; and 
 
Whereas Ms. Kay and Ms. Pamphilon finished 47th out of 416 teams in the 
event overall against teams from around the country and world, winning Top 
Female Team and a scholarship for $144,000 to Kentucky Christian 
University, this being Ms. Kay’s second top female award in two years at the 
championship. 
 
Now, therefore, be it resolved that the Anderson County Council hereby 
congratulates Ms. Kay and Ms. Pamphilon for their accomplishments and 
thanks them for representing Anderson County so well on the national and 
international stage. 
 
Resolved in a meeting duly assembled this 19th day of July 2022. 

 
 
FOR ANDERSON COUNTY  ATTEST 
 
 
 
____________________   ____________________ 
Ray Graham     Rusty Burns 
County Council     County Administrator 
District Three     
 
      ____________________ 
      Renee Watts 

Clerk to Council 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-028 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTIES LOCATED WITHIN THE TOWN LIMITS OF HONEA PATH, SOUTH 
CAROLINA WHICH WERE A PART OF THE NEIGHBORHOOD INITIATIVE 
PROGRAM TO THE TOWN OF HONEA PATH; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED 
THERETO. 

 
  WHEREAS, beginning in 2015, Anderson County participated in the Neighborhood 
Initiative Program (“NIP”), a federally funded program managed in South Carolina by the South 
Carolina Housing and Development Authority;  

 
 WHEREAS, the NIP process required the involvement of a non-profit corporation and the 
County partnered with the Pelzer Heritage Commission to acquire properties which met the 
requirements of the NIP; 
 
 WHEREAS, the properties were acquired and titled in the Pelzer Heritage Commission 
with a lease back to the County for clean-up and maintenance of the properties; 
 
 WHEREAS, there are four (8) properties located within the Town of Honea Path at 10 
Smith Street (TMS 275-06-10-010), 104 Sirrine Street (TMS 275-09-14-002), 1300 Chiquola 
Avenue (TMS 275-11-02-014), 19 Mississippi Street (TMS 275-09-06-010), 2 Green Street (TMS 
275-10-04-001), 303 Maryland Avenue (TMS 275-09-11-007), 501 Chiquola Avenue (TMS 275-
06-05-007), 8 Smith Street (TMS 275-06-10-011); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Honea Path desires to acquire these properties for residential 
use; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Anderson County desires to cancel its lease of those properties and agrees 
and requests that the properties to be deeded by the Pelzer Heritage Commission to the Town of 
Honea Path. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 
 
 1. Anderson County agrees to cancellation of its lease of properties located at 10 
Smith Street (TMS 275-06-10-010), 104 Sirrine Street (TMS 275-09-14-002), 1300 Chiquola 
Avenue (TMS 275-11-02-014), 19 Mississippi Street (TMS 275-09-06-010), 2 Green Street (TMS 
275-10-04-001), 303 Maryland Avenue (TMS 275-09-11-007), 501 Chiquola Avenue (TMS 275-
06-05-007), 8 Smith Street (TMS 275-06-10-011) and further agrees and requests that these 
properties be deeded by the Pelzer Heritage Commission to the Town of Honea Path.  The County 
Administrator is hereby authorized to execute any and all documents necessary to accomplish the 
transfer of these properties to the Town of Honea Path. 
 



 2. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 
 
 3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the rest 
and remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 
4. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the third reading and enactment 
of by Anderson County Council. 
 
 
 ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this _____ day of August, 2022. 
 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
_____________________________      ______________________________   
Rusty Burns        Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator   Anderson County Council 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Renee Watts    
Clerk to Council 
               
  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney      
 
 
First Reading:       June 29, 2022 
 
Second Reading:   July 19, 2022  
 
Third Reading:    _______________  
 
Public Hearing:   _______________     
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-029 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTIES LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF BELTON, SOUTH 
CAROLINA WHICH WERE A PART OF THE NEIGHBORHOOD INITIATIVE 
PROGRAM TO THE CITY OF BELTON; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED 
THERETO. 

 
  WHEREAS, beginning in 2015, Anderson County participated in the Neighborhood 
Initiative Program (“NIP”), a federally funded program managed in South Carolina by the South 
Carolina Housing and Development Authority;  

 
 WHEREAS, the NIP process required the involvement of a non-profit corporation and the 
County partnered with the Pelzer Heritage Commission to acquire properties which met the 
requirements of the NIP; 
 
 WHEREAS, the properties were acquired and titled in the Pelzer Heritage Commission 
with a lease back to the County for clean-up and maintenance of the properties; 
 
 WHEREAS, there are four (4) properties located within the City of Belton at 108 Oak 
Street (TMS 226-04-01-039), 111 Stevenson Drive (TMS 225-04-01-005), 115 Haynie Street 
(TMS 226-04-05-009), 147 Brookside Circle (TMS 226-04-01-024); 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Belton desires to acquire these properties for residential use; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Anderson County desires to cancel its lease of those properties and agrees 
and requests that the properties to be deeded by the Pelzer Heritage Commission to the City of 
Belton. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 
 
 1. Anderson County agrees to cancellation of its lease of properties located at 108 Oak 
Street (TMS 226-04-01-039), 111 Stevenson Drive (TMS 225-04-01-005), 115 Haynie Street 
(TMS 226-04-05-009), 147 Brookside Circle (TMS 226-04-01-024) and further agrees and 
requests that these properties be deeded by the Pelzer Heritage Commission to the City of Belton.  
The County Administrator is hereby authorized to execute any and all documents necessary to 
accomplish the transfer of these properties to the City of Belton. 
 
 2. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 
 
 3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the rest 
and remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 



 
4. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the third reading and enactment 
of by Anderson County Council. 
 
 
 ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this _____ day of August, 2022. 
 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
_____________________________      ______________________________   
Rusty Burns        Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator   Anderson County Council 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Renee Watts    
Clerk to Council 
               
  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney      
 
 
First Reading:        June 29, 2022 
 
Second Reading:   July 19, 2022  
 
Third Reading:    _______________  
 
Public Hearing:   _______________     

  



 ORDINANCE NO. 2022-015      
 
AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AND ENACTING A NEW CODE FOR 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA; PROVIDING FOR THE 
REPEAL OF CERTAIN ORDINANCES NOT INCLUDED THEREIN; 
PROVIDING A PENALTY FOR THE VIOLATION THEREOF; PROVIDING 
FOR THE MANNER OF AMENDING SUCH CODE; AND PROVIDING 
WHEN SUCH CODE AND THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BECOME 
EFFECTIVE. 

 
WHEREAS, the most recent recodification and republished Code for Anderson County, 

South Carolina occurred approximately twenty-two (22) years ago; 

WHEREAS, significant and numerous amendments have been made to the Code by the 

Anderson County Council over the past twenty-two years; and  

WHEREAS, the County Council desires to recodify and republish the Code of Ordinances 

for the benefit of all who utilize the Code. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 

assembled that: 

1. The Code entitled "Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina," published by 

Municode, and subsequently recodified and republished by Municode, and attached hereto, 

consisting of Chapters 1 through 48, each inclusive, is adopted as the official Code of Ordinances. 

2.  All ordinances of a general and permanent nature enacted on or before December 15, 

2020, and not included in the Code or recognized and continued in force by reference therein, are 

repealed, subject to the general provision and rules of construction of Chapter 1 of the Code except 

that nothing in this ordinance or the Code is intended to repeal or otherwise affect the validity of 

ordinances or portions thereof unintentionally omitted in the Code.  Any change to a previously 

enacted ordinance effected by the Code shall be an amendment of such ordinance by this ordinance.  



This ordinance specifically incorporates by reference all of the terms, provisions and conditions of 

the Code, specifically including but not limited to Chapter 1 of the Code. 

3. The repeal provided for in Section 2 hereof shall not be construed to revive any ordinance 

or part thereof that has been repealed by a subsequent ordinance that is repealed by this ordinance. 

4. Unless another penalty is expressly provided, every person convicted of a violation of any 

provision of the Code or any ordinance, rule or regulation adopted or issued in pursuance thereof 

shall be punished according to code Section 1-7. Each act of violation and each day upon which any 

such violation shall continue or occur shall constitute a separate offense. The penalty provided by 

this section, unless another penalty is expressly provided, shall apply to the amendment of any Code 

section, whether or not such penalty is reenacted in the amendatory ordinance. In addition to the 

penalty prescribed above, the county may pursue other remedies such as abatement of nuisances, 

injunctive relief and revocation of licenses or permits.  

5.  Additions or amendments to the Code when passed in such form as to indicate the 

intention of the county council to make the same a part of the Code shall be deemed to be 

incorporated in the Code, so that reference to the Code includes the additions and amendments. 

6. Should part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or unenforceable by 

any court of competent jurisdiction, such, determination should not affect the rest and remainder of 

this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

7. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions and actions of the County inconsistent herewith are 

hereby to the extent of such inconsistency only, revoked, repealed, rescinded and superseded. 

8. All other terms, provisions, sections, and contents of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson 

County, South Carolina not specifically affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 



9. Ordinances adopted after December 15, 2020, that amend or refer to ordinances that have 

been codified in the Code, shall be construed as if they amend or refer to like provisions of the Code. 

10.  This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the public hearing and the third reading 

in accordance with the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina. 

Ordained in meeting duly assembled ________ this ____day of ________, 2022. 

       
ATTEST:   
 
 
_____________________________      ______________________________   
Rusty Burns        Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator   Anderson County Council 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Renee Watts    
Clerk to Council 
               
  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
 
First Reading: __________________ 
 
Second Reading: ________________ 
 
Third Reading: __________________ 
 
Public Hearing: __________________ 



 

 Certificate of Adoption 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of the ordinance passed at the regular 

meeting of the county council, held on the             day of               ________, 2022. 

 

        _____________                
County Administrator 

 
 



 
WBD (US) 56379034v1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-025 
 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FEE 
IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN ANDERSON COUNTY, 
SOUTH CAROLINA AND PROJECT FIDDLER WITH RESPECT TO CERTAIN 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY IN THE COUNTY, WHEREBY SUCH 
PROPERTY WILL BE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES; 
AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
WHEREAS, ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the “County”), acting by and 

through its County Council (the “County Council”), is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the 
provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act”), Title 4, Chapter 1 (the “Multi-County Park Act”), and 
Title 4, Chapter 29, of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, to enter into agreements with 
industry whereby the industry would pay fees-in-lieu-of taxes (the “FILOT”) with respect to qualified 
projects; through all such powers the industrial development of the State of South Carolina (the “State”) will 
be promoted and trade developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate or remain 
in the State and thus utilize and employ the manpower, products and resources of the State and benefit the 
general public welfare of the County by providing services, employment, recreation or other public benefits 
not otherwise provided locally; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the FILOT Act, and in order to induce investment in the County, the County 
Council adopted on _______, 2022 an inducement resolution (the “Inducement Resolution”) regarding 
[Project Fiddler], a __________ corporation (the “Company”) (which was known to the County at the time 
as “Project Fiddler”), with respect to the Company’s acquisition and installation of improvements, fixtures, 
machinery, equipment, furnishings and other tangible personal property to constitute a tooling facility in the 
County (collectively, the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company has represented that the Project will involve an investment of 
approximately $5,618,000, but not less than $2,500,000 in the County within the Investment Period (as such 
term is defined in the hereinafter defined Fee Agreement); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has determined on the basis of the information supplied to it by the 
Company that the Project would be a “project” and “economic development property” as such terms are 
defined in the FILOT Act, and that the Project would serve the purposes of the FILOT Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of Section 4-1-170 of the Multi-County Park Act and Article 
VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution, the County intends to cause the Project, to the extent not 
already therein located, to be placed in a joint county industrial and business park (the “Park”) such that the 
Project will receive the benefits of the Multi-County Park Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Inducement Resolution, the County has agreed to, among other things, 
enter into a FILOT agreement with the Company (the “Fee Agreement”), whereby the County would provide 
therein for a payment of a FILOT by the Company with respect to the Project; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the County Council has caused to be prepared and presented to this meeting the form 
of the Fee Agreement that the County proposes to execute and deliver (subject to the terms of this ordinance); 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, it appears that the above-referenced document, which is now before this meeting, is in 
appropriate form and is an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered or approved by the County for 
the purposes intended;   



2 
WBD (US) 56379034v1 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Council as follows: 
 

Section 1. Based on information supplied by the Company, it is hereby found, determined and 
declared by the County Council, as follows: 

(a) The Project will constitute a “project” and “economic development property” as said 
terms are referred to and defined in the FILOT Act, and the County’s actions herein will subserve the 
purposes and in all respects conform to the provisions and requirements of the FILOT Act; 

(b) The Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by 
providing services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; 

(c) The Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated 
municipality or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of either; 

(d) The purposes to be accomplished by the Project, i.e., economic development, 
creation of jobs and addition to the tax base of the County, are proper governmental and public 
purposes; and 

(e) The benefits of the Project are anticipated to be greater than the costs. 

Section 2. The form, terms and provisions of the Fee Agreement presented to this meeting are 
hereby approved and all of the terms, provisions and conditions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by 
reference as if the Fee Agreement were set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chair of County Council 
and/or the County Administrator hereby are (and each hereby is) authorized, empowered and directed to 
execute, acknowledge and deliver the Fee Agreement in the name of and on behalf of the County, and the 
Clerk to County Council is hereby authorized and directed to attest the same, and thereupon to cause the Fee 
Agreement to be delivered to the Company, respectively, and cause copies of the same to be delivered to the 
Anderson County Auditor, Assessor and Treasurer. The Fee Agreement is to be in substantially the form now 
before this meeting and hereby approved, or with such minor changes therein as shall be approved by the 
Chair of County Council or the County Administrator, upon advice of counsel, the execution thereof to 
constitute conclusive evidence of approval of any and all changes or revisions therein from the form of Fee 
Agreement now before this meeting. 

Section 3. Revenues generated for the Park from the Project through the FILOT payments to be retained by 
the County (“Net Park Fees”) under the agreement governing the Park shall be distributed within the County 
in accordance with this subsection: 

15% of Net Park Fees shall be deposited to Bond Fund created by Ordinance 2018-042 and used as 
required or permitted thereby;  

35% of Net Park Fees, and any surplus money under Ordinance 2018-042, shall be deposited to the 
Capital Renewal and Replacement Fund of the County; and 

Remaining Net Park Fees shall be disbursed to each of the taxing entities in the County which levy 
an old ad valorem property tax in any of the areas comprising the County portion of the Park in the 
same percentage as is equal to that taxing entity’s percentage of the millage rate (and proportion of 
operating and debt service millage) being levied in the current tax year for property tax purposes. 



3 
WBD (US) 56379034v1 

Section 4. The Chair of County Council, the County Administrator and the Clerk to County 
Council, for and on behalf of the County, hereby are (and each individually hereby is) authorized, empowered 
and directed to do any and all things necessary to effect the execution and delivery of the Fee Agreement and 
the performance of all obligations of the County thereunder. 

Section 5. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and if any 
section, phrase or provisions shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid 
or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases and 
provisions hereunder. 

Section 6. All ordinances, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent 
of such conflict, hereby repealed. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage 
by the County Council. 

[remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
 
 
 
 



 
WBD (US) 56379034v1 

 ENACTED in meeting duly assembled this ______ day of _______, 2022.  
 
 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
        
Tommy Dunn 
Chair of County Council 
 

Attest: 
 
 
      
Renee Watts 
Clerk to County Council 
 
Attest: 
 
      
Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
_________________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon 
County Attorney 
 
 
 
First Reading: July 19, 2022 
 
Second Reading: _________, 2022 
 
Third Reading: _________, 2022 
 
Public Hearing: _________, 2022



 
WBD (US) 56379034v1 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received unanimous approval, by the County Council at its meetings of _______, 2022, ________, 2022, and 
________, 2022, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and an 
original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________________ 
 Renee Watts  
 Clerk to County Council, 
 Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
Dated: ____________, 2022 
 
 
 



 

 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT 
 
 

by and between 
 
 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
 

and 
 
 

PROJECT FIDDLER 
 
 
 

 
Dated as of _______, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

i 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 
SECTION 1.01 DEFINITIONS ............................................................................................................................................ 2 
SECTION 1.02 PROJECT-RELATED INVESTMENTS ........................................................................................................... 5 

ARTICLE II 

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS 
SECTION 2.01 REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS OF THE COUNTY.................................................. 6 
SECTION 2.02 REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS OF THE COMPANY ............................................... 6 

ARTICLE III 

COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT 
SECTION 3.01 THE PROJECT ........................................................................................................................................... 8 
SECTION 3.02 DILIGENT COMPLETION ........................................................................................................................... 8 
SECTION 3.03 FILINGS AND REPORTS ............................................................................................................................. 8 

ARTICLE IV 

FILOT PAYMENTS 
SECTION 4.01 FILOT PAYMENTS ................................................................................................................................. 10 
SECTION 4.02 FAILURE TO ACHIEVE MINIMUM INVESTMENT REQUIREMENT .............................................................. 11 
SECTION 4.03 REMOVAL OF EQUIPMENT ...................................................................................................................... 11 
SECTION 4.04 FILOT PAYMENTS ON REPLACEMENT PROPERTY .................................................................................. 12 
SECTION 4.05 REDUCTIONS IN PAYMENT OF TAXES UPON DIMINUTION IN VALUE; INVESTMENT MAINTENANCE 

REQUIREMENT ...................................................................................................................................... 12 
ARTICLE V 

PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 
SECTION 5.01 CESSATION OF OPERATIONS ................................................................................................................... 13 
SECTION 5.02 RIGHTS TO INSPECT ................................................................................................................................ 13 
SECTION 5.03 CONFIDENTIALITY ................................................................................................................................. 13 
SECTION 5.04 LIMITATION OF COUNTY’S LIABILITY .................................................................................................... 13 
SECTION 5.05 MERGERS, REORGANIZATIONS AND EQUITY TRANSFERS....................................................................... 14 
SECTION 5.06 INDEMNIFICATION COVENANTS ............................................................................................................. 14 
SECTION 5.07 QUALIFICATION IN STATE ...................................................................................................................... 15 
SECTION 5.08 NO LIABILITY OF COUNTY’S PERSONNEL .............................................................................................. 15 
SECTION 5.09 ASSIGNMENT, LEASES OR TRANSFERS ................................................................................................... 15 
SECTION 5.10 ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES ................................................................................................................. 16 
SECTION 5.11 PRIORITY LIEN STATUS .......................................................................................................................... 16 
SECTION 5.12 INTEREST; PENALTIES ............................................................................................................................ 16 
SECTION 5.13 SPONSOR AFFILIATES ............................................................................................................................. 16 

ARTICLE VI 

DEFAULT 
SECTION 6.01 EVENTS OF DEFAULT ............................................................................................................................. 18 
SECTION 6.02 REMEDIES UPON DEFAULT .................................................................................................................... 18 



 

ii 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

SECTION 6.03 REIMBURSEMENT OF LEGAL FEES AND EXPENSES AND OTHER EXPENSES ............................................ 19 
SECTION 6.04 NO WAIVER ........................................................................................................................................... 19 

ARTICLE VII 

MISCELLANEOUS 
SECTION 7.01 NOTICES ................................................................................................................................................. 20 
SECTION 7.02 BINDING EFFECT .................................................................................................................................... 20 
SECTION 7.03 COUNTERPARTS ..................................................................................................................................... 21 
SECTION 7.04 GOVERNING LAW ................................................................................................................................... 21 
SECTION 7.05 HEADINGS .............................................................................................................................................. 21 
SECTION 7.06 AMENDMENTS ........................................................................................................................................ 21 
SECTION 7.07 FURTHER ASSURANCE ........................................................................................................................... 21 
SECTION 7.08 INVALIDITY; CHANGE IN LAWS .............................................................................................................. 21 
SECTION 7.09 TERMINATION BY COMPANY .................................................................................................................. 21 
SECTION 7.10 ENTIRE UNDERSTANDING ...................................................................................................................... 22 
SECTION 7.11 WAIVER ................................................................................................................................................. 22 
SECTION 7.12 BUSINESS DAY ....................................................................................................................................... 22 
 
EXHIBIT A – DESCRIPTION OF LAND 
EXHIBIT B – INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 
 



 

iii 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

SUMMARY OF CONTENTS OF 
FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT 

 
 

As permitted under Section 12-44-55(B), Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the “Code”), 
the parties have agreed to waive the requirements of Section 12-44-55 of the Code.  The following is a 
summary of the key provisions of this Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement.  This summary is inserted for 
convenience only and does not constitute a part of this Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement or a summary 
compliant with Section 12-44-55 of the Code.  
 
 

Company Name: TBA Project Name: Project Fiddler 
Projected Investment: $5,618,000 Projected Jobs: n/a 
Location (street): TBA Tax Map No.: TBA 
    
1. FILOT    
 Required Investment: $2,500,000.00   
 Investment Period: 5 years, extends to 10 years once first 

$2,500,000 is invested 
Ordinance No./Date: [_____], Month XX, 2022 

 Assessment Ratio: 6% Term (years): 30 years 
 Millage: 332.07 and 328.07 mills, fixed 

 
Net Present Value (if 
yes, discount rate): 

n/a 
 

 Clawback information: See Section 4.03. If the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement is not met during the 
Investment Period, the Fee Agreement will be retroactively terminated. 
 
 

2. MCIP  
 Included in an MCIP: Yes 
 If yes, Name & Date: Anderson/Greenville, December 1, 2010 
  
3. SSRC  
 Total Amount: n/a 
 No. of Years n/a 
    Yearly Increments: n/a 
 Clawback information:  

n/a 
 

4. Other information  
 
 

 
 



 

 

FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT (the “Fee Agreement”) is made and entered into as 
of [__________], 2022 (the “Effective Date”) by and between ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH 
CAROLINA (the “County”), a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South 
Carolina (the “State”), acting by and through the Anderson County Council (the “County Council”) as the 
governing body of the County, and [Project Fiddler], a corporation organized and existing under the laws of 
the State of [______] (the “Company”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

1. Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act”), Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended 
(the “Code”), authorizes the County to (a) induce industries to locate in the State; (b) encourage industries 
now located in the State to expand their investments and thus make use of and employ manpower, products, 
and other resources of the State; and (c) enter into a fee agreement with entities meeting the requirements of 
the FILOT Act, which identifies certain property of such entities as economic development property and 
provides for the payment of a fee in lieu of tax with respect to such property. 

2. The Company (as a Sponsor, within the meaning of the FILOT Act) desires to provide for 
the acquisition, construction and installation of improvements, fixtures, machinery, equipment, furnishings, 
and other tangible personal property of the Project (as defined herein) to constitute a tooling facility in the 
County. 

3. Based on information supplied by the Company, the County Council has evaluated the 
Project based on relevant criteria that include, but are not limited to, the purposes the Project is to accomplish, 
the anticipated dollar amount and nature of the investment, employment to be created or maintained, and the 
anticipated costs and benefits to the County. Pursuant to Section 12-44-40(H)(1) of the FILOT Act, the County 
finds that: (a) the Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing 
services, employment, recreation, or other public benefits not otherwise adequately provided locally; (b) the 
Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated municipality therein and to 
no charge against their general credit or taxing powers; (c) the purposes to be accomplished by the Project are 
proper governmental and public purposes; and (d) the benefits of the Project are greater than the costs. 

4. The Project is located, or if not so located as of the date of this Fee Agreement the County 
intends to use its best efforts to so locate the Project, in a joint county industrial or business park created with 
an adjoining county in the State pursuant to agreement entered into pursuant to Section 4-1-170 of the Code 
and Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution. 

5. The County Council approved on [__________], 2022 an inducement resolution to identify, 
reflect and induce the Project under the Act and to state the commitment of the County to, among other things, 
enter into this Agreement; 

6. By enactment of an Ordinance on [_______], 2022, the County Council has authorized the 
County to enter into this Fee Agreement with the Company which classifies the Project as Economic 
Development Property under the FILOT Act and provides for the payment of fees in lieu of taxes to reimburse 
the Company for payment of the cost of certain Infrastructure in connection with the Project, all as further 
described herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the respective representations and 
agreements hereinafter contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 



 

2 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 
Section 1.01  Definitions 
 

The terms that this Article defines shall for all purposes of this Fee Agreement have the meanings 
herein specified, unless the context clearly requires otherwise: 
 
 “Administration Expenses” shall mean the reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the 
County with respect to this Fee Agreement, including without limitation reasonable attorney fees; provided, 
however, that no such expense shall be considered an Administration Expense until the County has 
furnished to the Company a statement in writing indicating the amount of such expense and the reason it 
has been or will be incurred. 
 
 “Affiliate” shall mean: (a) any corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other entity 
which owns all or part of the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor Affiliate) or 
which is owned in whole or in part by the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor 
Affiliate) or by any partner, shareholder or owner of the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, 
such Sponsor Affiliate), as well as (b) any subsidiary, affiliate, individual or entity who bears a relationship 
to the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor Affiliate), as described in Section 
267(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 
 
 “Code” shall mean the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended.   
 

“Commencement Date” shall mean the last day of the property tax year during which the Project 
or the first Phase thereof is placed in service, which date shall not be later than the last day of the property 
tax year which is three (3) years from the year in which the County and the Company enter into this Fee 
Agreement. 

“Company” shall mean [Project Fiddler], a [__________] corporation, and any surviving, 
resulting, or transferee entity in any merger, consolidation, or transfer of assets; or any other person or 
entity which may succeed to the rights and duties of the Company. 

 “Condemnation Event” shall mean any act of taking by a public or quasi-public authority through 
condemnation, reverse condemnation or eminent domain. 
 

“Contract Minimum Investment Requirement” shall mean, with respect to the Project, investment 
by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates of at least $2,500,000 in Economic Development Property 
subject (non-exempt) to ad valorem taxation (in the absence of this Fee Agreement). 

“County” shall mean Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a political 
subdivision of the State, its successors and assigns, acting by and through the County Council as the 
governing body of the County. 

“County Administrator” shall mean the Anderson County Administrator, or the person holding 
any successor office of the County. 

“County Assessor” shall mean the Anderson County Assessor, or the person holding any successor 
office of the County. 



 

3 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

“County Auditor” shall mean the Anderson County Auditor, or the person holding any successor 
office of the County. 

“County Council” shall mean Anderson County Council, the governing body of the County. 

“County Treasurer” shall mean the Anderson County Treasurer, or the person holding any 
successor office of the County. 

“Defaulting Entity” shall have the meaning set forth for such term in Section 6.02(a) hereof. 

“Deficiency Amount” shall have the meaning set forth for such term in Section 4.03(a) hereof. 

“Department” shall mean the South Carolina Department of Revenue. 

“Diminution in Value” in respect of the Project shall mean any reduction in the value, using the 
original fair market value (without regard to depreciation) as determined in Step 1 of Section 4.01 of this 
Fee Agreement, of the items which constitute a part of the Project and which are subject to FILOT payments 
which may be caused by the Company’s or any Sponsor Affiliate’s removal and/or disposal of equipment 
pursuant to Section 4.04 hereof, or by its election to remove components of the Project as a result of any 
damage or destruction or any Condemnation Event with respect thereto. 

“Economic Development Property” shall mean those items of tangible personal property of the 
Project which are eligible for inclusion as economic development property under the FILOT Act and this 
Fee Agreement, and selected and identified by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in its annual filing of 
a SCDOR PT-300S or comparable form with the Department (as such filing may be amended from time to 
time) for each year within the Investment Period. 

“Equipment” shall mean machinery, equipment, furniture, office equipment, and other tangible 
personal property, together with any and all additions, accessions, replacements, and substitutions thereto 
or therefor. 

“Event of Default” shall mean any event of default specified in Section 6.01 hereof. 

“Exemption Period” shall mean the period beginning on the first day of the property tax year after 
the property tax year in which an applicable portion of Economic Development Property is placed in service 
and ending on the Termination Date.  In case there are Phases of the Project, the Exemption Period applies 
to each year’s investment made during the Investment Period. 

“Fee Agreement” shall mean this fee in lieu of tax agreement. 

“FILOT” or “FILOT Payments” shall mean the amount paid or to be paid in lieu of ad valorem 
property taxes as provided herein. 

“FILOT Act” shall mean Title 12, Chapter 44, of the Code, and all future acts successor or 
supplemental thereto or amendatory thereof. 

“FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement” shall mean, with respect to the Project, an 
investment of at least $2,500,000 by the Company, or of at least $5,000,000 by the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates in the aggregate, in Economic Development Property. 



 

4 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

“Infrastructure” shall mean infrastructure serving the County and improved or unimproved real 
estate and personal property, including machinery and equipment, used in the operation of the Project, 
within the meaning of Section 4-29-68 of the Code. 

“Investment Period” shall mean, and shall be equal to, the Standard Investment Period. 

“Land” means the land upon which the Project will be located, as described in Exhibit A attached 
hereto, as Exhibit A may be supplemented from time to time in accordance with Section 3.01(c) hereof. 

“MCIP” shall mean (i) the joint county industrial park established pursuant to the terms of the 
MCIP Agreement and (ii) any joint county industrial park created pursuant to a successor park agreement 
delivered by the County and a partner county in accordance with Section 4-1-170 of the MCIP Act, or any 
successor provision, with respect to the Project. 

 “MCIP Act” shall mean Title 4, Chapter 1, of the Code, and all future acts successor or 
supplemental thereto or amendatory thereof. 

“MCIP Agreement” shall mean the Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial 
and Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, between the County and 
Greenville County, South Carolina, as the same may be further amended or supplemented from time to 
time. 

 “Phase” or “Phases” in respect of the Project shall mean that the components of the Project are 
placed in service during more than one year during the Investment Period, and the word “Phase” shall 
therefore refer to the applicable portion of the Project placed in service in a given year during the Investment 
Period. 

“Project” shall mean all the Equipment that the Company determines to be necessary, suitable or 
useful for the purposes described in Section 2.02(b) hereof, to the extent determined by the Company and 
any Sponsor Affiliate to be a part of the Project and placed in service during the Investment Period, and 
any Replacement Property.  Notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the Project 
shall not include property which will not qualify for the FILOT pursuant to Section 12-44-110 of the FILOT 
Act, including without limitation property which has been subject to ad valorem taxation in the State prior 
to commencement of the Investment Period; provided, however, the Project may include the property 
allowed pursuant to Section 12-44-110(2) of the FILOT Act. 

“Removed Components” shall mean components of the Project or portions thereof which the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in its sole discretion, elects to remove from the Project pursuant to 
Section 4.04 hereof or as a result of any Condemnation Event. 

“Replacement Property” shall mean any property which is placed in service as a replacement for 
any item of Equipment previously subject to this Fee Agreement regardless of whether such property serves 
the same functions as the property it is replacing and regardless of whether more than one piece of property 
replaces any item of Equipment to the fullest extent that the FILOT Act permits. 

 “Sponsor Affiliate” shall mean an entity that joins with the Company and that participates in the 
investment in, or financing of, the Project and which meets the requirements under the FILOT Act to be 
entitled to the benefits of this Fee Agreement with respect to its participation in the Project, all as set forth 
in Section 5.13 hereof. 



 

5 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

“Standard Investment Period” shall mean the period beginning with the first day of any purchase 
or acquisition of Economic Development Property and ending five (5) years after the Commencement Date. 
If $2,500,000 is invested in the Project before five (5) years after the Commencement Date, the Standard 
Investment Period shall end ten (10) years after the Commencement Date.   

“State” shall mean the State of South Carolina. 

“Termination Date” shall mean, with respect to each Phase of the Project, the end of the last day 
of the property tax year which is the 29th year following the first property tax year in which such Phase of 
the Project is placed in service; provided, that the intention of the parties is that the Company will make at 
least 30 annual FILOT Payments under Article IV hereof with respect to each Phase of the Project; and 
provided further, that if this Fee Agreement is terminated earlier in accordance with the terms hereof, the 
Termination Date shall mean the date of such termination. 

“Transfer Provisions” shall mean the provisions of Section 12-44-120 of the FILOT Act, as 
amended or supplemented from time to time, concerning, among other things, the necessity of obtaining 
County consent to certain transfers. 

Any reference to any agreement or document in this Article I or otherwise in this Fee Agreement 
shall include any and all amendments, supplements, addenda, and modifications to such agreement or 
document. 

Section 1.02  Project-Related Investments 
 
 The term “investment” or “invest” as used herein shall include not only investments made by the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, but also to the fullest extent permitted by law, those investments 
made by or for the benefit of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate with respect to the Project through 
federal, state, or local grants, to the extent such investments are subject to ad valorem taxes or FILOT 
Payments by the Company. 

 
[End of Article I] 

  



 

6 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

 
ARTICLE II 

 
REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS 

 
Section 2.01  Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the County 
 
 The County hereby represents, warrants, and agrees as follows: 

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State and acts 
through the County Council as its governing body. The County has duly authorized the execution and 
delivery of this Fee Agreement and any and all other agreements described herein or therein and has 
obtained all consents from third parties and taken all actions necessary or that the law requires to fulfill its 
obligations hereunder. 

(b) Based upon representations by the Company, the Project constitutes a “project” within the 
meaning of the FILOT Act. 

(c) The County has agreed that each item of tangible personal property comprising the Project 
which is eligible to be economic development property under the FILOT Act and that the Company selects 
shall be considered Economic Development Property and is thereby exempt from ad valorem taxation in 
the State. 

(d) The millage rates set forth in Step 3 of Section 4.01(a) hereof are 332.07 and 328.07 mills 
(as further described in Section 4.01 and in Exhibit A, which are the millage rates in effect with respect to 
the location of the components of the proposed Project as of June 30, 2021, as permitted under Section 12-
44-50(A)(1)(d) of the FILOT Act. 

(e) The County will use its reasonable best efforts to cause the Project to be located in a MCIP 
for a term extending at least until the end of the period of FILOT Payments is to be provided under this Fee 
Agreement. 

Section 2.02  Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the Company 
 

The Company hereby represents, warrants, and agrees as follows: 

(a) The Company is organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of [______], is 
duly authorized to transact business in the State, has power to enter into this Fee Agreement, and has duly 
authorized the execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement. 

(b) The Company intends to operate the Project as a “project” within the meaning of the FILOT 
Act as in effect on the date hereof. The Company intends to operate the Project for the purpose of a tooling 
facility, and for such other purposes that the FILOT Act permits as the Company may deem appropriate. 

(c) The execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement by the County has been instrumental in 
inducing the Company to locate the Project in the County. 

(d) The Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, will use commercially reasonable 
efforts to meet, or cause to be met the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement within the Investment 
Period. 



 

7 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

[End of Article II] 
  



 

8 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

 
ARTICLE III 

 
COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT 

 
Section 3.01  The Project 
 

(a) The Company intends and expects, together with any Sponsor Affiliate, to (i) construct and 
acquire the Project and (ii) meet the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement within the Investment 
Period. The Company anticipates that the first Phase of the Project will be placed in service during the 
calendar year ending December 31, 2022. 

(b) Pursuant to the FILOT Act and subject to Section 4.03 hereof, the Company and the County 
hereby agree that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall identify annually those assets which are 
eligible for FILOT Payments under the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement, and which the Company or 
any Sponsor Affiliate selects for such treatment by listing such assets in its annual PT-300S form (or 
comparable form) to be filed with the Department (as such may be amended from time to time) and that by 
listing such assets, such assets shall automatically become Economic Development Property and therefore 
be exempt from all ad valorem taxation during the Exemption Period. Anything contained in this Fee 
Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall not be obligated 
to complete the acquisition of the Project. However, if the Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, 
does not meet the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement within the Investment Period, the provisions 
of Section 4.03 hereof shall control. 

(c) The Company may add to the Land such real property, located in the same taxing District 
in the County as the original Land, as the Company, in its discretion, deems useful or desirable. In such 
event, the Company, at its expense, shall deliver an appropriately revised Exhibit A to this Fee Agreement, 
in form reasonably acceptable to the County. 

Section 3.02  Diligent Completion 
 

The Company agrees to use its reasonable efforts to cause the completion of the Project as soon as 
practicable, but in any event on or prior to the end of the Investment Period. 

Section 3.03  Filings and Reports 
 

(a) Each year during the term of the Fee Agreement, each of the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates shall deliver to the County, the County Auditor, the County Assessor and the County Treasurer a 
copy of its most recent annual filings with the Department with respect to the Project, not later than thirty 
(30) days following delivery thereof to the Department. 

(b) The Company shall cause a copy of this Fee Agreement, as well as a copy of the completed 
Form PT-443 of the Department, to be filed with the County Auditor and the County Assessor, and to their 
counterparts in the partner county to the MCIP Agreement, the County Administrator and the Department 
within thirty (30) days after the date of execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement by all parties hereto. 

(c) Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agrees to maintain complete books and 
records accounting for the acquisition, financing, construction, and operation of the Project.  Such books 
and records shall (i) permit ready identification of the various Phases and components thereof; (ii) confirm 
the dates on which each Phase was placed in service; and (iii) include copies of all filings made by the 



 

9 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

Company and any such Sponsor Affiliates in accordance with Section 3.03(a) or (b) above with respect to 
property placed in service as part of the Project. 

[End of Article III] 
  



 

10 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

 
ARTICLE IV 

 
FILOT PAYMENTS 

 
Section 4.01  FILOT Payments 
 

(a) Pursuant to Section 12-44-50 of the FILOT Act, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, 
as applicable, are required to make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes to the County with respect to the 
Economic Development Property. Inasmuch as the Company anticipates an initial investment of sums 
sufficient for the Project to qualify for a fee in lieu of tax arrangement under Section 12-44-50(A)(1) of the 
FILOT Act, the County and the Company have negotiated the amount of the FILOT Payments in 
accordance therewith. The Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall make payments in lieu 
of ad valorem taxes on all Economic Development Property that comprises the Project and is placed in 
service, as follows: the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall make payments in lieu of 
ad valorem taxes during the Exemption Period with respect to the Economic Development Property or, if 
there are Phases of the Economic Development Property, with respect to each Phase of the Economic 
Development Property, said payments to be made annually and to be due and payable and subject to penalty 
assessments on the same dates and in the same manner as prescribed by the County for ad valorem taxes. 
The determination of the amount of such annual FILOT Payments shall be in accordance with the following 
procedure (subject, in any event, to the procedures required by the FILOT Act): 

Step 1: Determine the original income tax basis for State income tax purposes for any personal 
property less depreciation for each year allowable for property tax purposes, except that no extraordinary 
obsolescence shall be allowable.  The determination of these values shall take into account all applicable 
property tax exemptions that State law would allow to the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates if the 
property were taxable, except those exemptions that Section 12-44-50(A)(2) of the FILOT Act specifically 
disallows. 

Step 2: Apply an assessment ratio of six percent (6%) to the fair market value in Step 1 to establish 
the taxable value of the Economic Development Property (or each Phase of the Economic Development 
Property) in the year it is placed in service and in each of the 29 years thereafter or such longer period of 
years in which the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement permit the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates to 
make annual FILOT Payments. 

Step 3: Use a fixed millage rate of 332.07 mills during the Exemption Period against the taxable 
value to determine the amount of the FILOT Payments due during the Exemption Period on the applicable 
payment dates for the portion of the Project located on the land described in Exhibit under the caption “171 
Alliance Parkway, Williamston,” and use a fixed millage rate of 328.07 mills for the portion of the Project 
located on the land described in Exhibit A under the caption “101 Clemson Research Blvd., Anderson.” 



 

11 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

(b) In the event that a final order of a court of competent jurisdiction from which no further 
appeal is allowable declares the FILOT Act and/or the herein-described FILOT Payments invalid or 
unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, the parties express their intentions to reform such 
payments so as to effectuate most closely the intent thereof (without increasing the amount of incentives 
being afforded herein) and so as to afford the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the benefits to be 
derived herefrom, the intention of the County being to offer the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates a 
strong inducement to locate the Project in the County.  If the Economic Development Property is deemed 
to be subject to ad valorem taxation, this Fee Agreement shall terminate, and the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates shall pay the County regular ad valorem taxes from the date of termination, but with appropriate 
reductions equivalent to all tax exemptions which are afforded to the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates.  
Any amount determined to be due and owing to the County from the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates, 
with respect to a year or years for which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates previously remitted FILOT 
Payments to the County hereunder, shall (i) take into account all applicable tax exemptions to which the 
Company or such Sponsor Affiliates would be entitled if the Economic Development Property was not and 
had not been Economic Development Property under the Act; and (ii) be reduced by the total amount of 
FILOT Payments the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates had made with respect to the Project pursuant to 
the terms hereof.  

Section 4.02  Failure to Achieve Minimum Investment Requirement 
 

(a) In the event the Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, fails to meet the Contract 
Minimum Investment Requirement by the end of the Investment Period, this Fee Agreement shall terminate 
and the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates shall pay the County an amount which is equal to the excess, 
if any, of (i) the total amount of ad valorem taxes as would result from taxes levied on the Project by the 
County, municipality or municipalities, school district or school districts, and other political units as if the 
items of property comprising the Economic Development Property were not Economic Development 
Property, but with appropriate reductions equivalent to all tax exemptions and abatements to which the 
Company and such Sponsor Affiliates would be entitled in such a case, through and including the end of 
the Investment Period, over (ii) the total amount of FILOT Payments the Company and such Sponsor 
Affiliates have made with respect to the Economic Development Property (such excess, a “Deficiency 
Amount”) for the period through and including the end of the Investment Period. Any amounts determined 
to be owing pursuant to the foregoing sentence shall be payable to the County on or before the second (2nd) 
January 15 following the last day of the Investment Period. 

(b) As a condition to the FILOT benefit provided herein, the Company agrees to provide the 
County Administrator, the County Assessor, the County Auditor and the County Treasurer with an annual 
certification as to investment in the Project. Such certification shall be in substantially the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit B, and shall be due no later than the May 1 following the immediately preceding December 
31 of each year during the Investment Period. 

Section 4.03  Removal of Equipment 
 

Subject, always, to the other terms and provisions of this Fee Agreement, the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates shall be entitled to remove and dispose of components of the Project from the Project in 
its sole discretion with the result that said components shall no longer be considered a part of the Project 
and, to the extent such constitute Economic Development Property, shall no longer be subject to the terms 
of this Fee Agreement.  Economic Development Property is disposed of only when it is scrapped or sold or 



 

12 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

removed from the Project. If it is removed from the Project, it is subject to ad valorem property taxes to the 
extent the property remains in the State and is otherwise subject to ad valorem property taxes. 

Section 4.04  FILOT Payments on Replacement Property 
 

If the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate elects to replace any Removed Components and to 
substitute such Removed Components with Replacement Property as a part of the Economic Development 
Property, or the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate otherwise utilizes Replacement Property, then, pursuant 
and subject to the provisions of Section 12-44-60 of the FILOT Act, the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate 
shall make statutory payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes with regard to such Replacement Property in 
accordance with the following: 

(i) Replacement Property does not have to serve the same function as the Economic 
Development Property it is replacing.  Replacement Property is deemed to replace the oldest 
Economic Development Property subject to the FILOT which is disposed of in the same property 
tax year in which the Replacement Property is placed in service.  Replacement Property qualifies 
as Economic Development Property only to the extent of the original income tax basis of Economic 
Development Property which is being disposed of in the same property tax year.  More than one 
piece of property can replace a single piece of Economic Development Property.  To the extent that 
the income tax basis of the Replacement Property exceeds the original income tax basis of the 
Economic Development Property which it is replacing, the excess amount is subject to annual 
payments calculated as if the exemption for Economic Development Property were not allowable.  
Replacement Property is entitled to treatment under the Fee Agreement for the period of time 
remaining during the Exemption Period for the Economic Development Property which it is 
replacing; and 

(ii) The new Replacement Property that qualifies for the FILOT shall be recorded 
using its income tax basis, and the calculation of the FILOT shall utilize the millage rate and 
assessment ratio in effect with regard to the original property subject to the FILOT. 

Section 4.05  Reductions in Payment of Taxes Upon Diminution in Value; Investment Maintenance 
Requirement 

 
In the event of a Diminution in Value of the Economic Development Property, the FILOT Payment 

with regard to the Economic Development Property shall be reduced in the same proportion as the amount 
of such Diminution in Value bears to the original fair market value of the Economic Development Property 
as determined pursuant to Step 1 of Section 4.01(a) hereof; provided, however, that if at any time subsequent 
to the end of the Investment Period, the total value of the Project remaining in the County based on the 
original income tax basis thereof (that is, without regard to depreciation), is less than the FILOT Act 
Minimum Investment Requirement, then beginning with the first payment thereafter due hereunder and 
continuing until the Termination Date, the Project shall no longer be entitled to the incentive provided in 
Section 4.01, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate shall therefore commence to pay regular ad 
valorem taxes thereon, calculated as set forth in Section 4.01(b) hereof.   

[End of Article IV] 
  



 

13 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

 
ARTICLE V 

 
PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

 
Section 5.01  Cessation of Operations 
 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Fee Agreement, each of the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates acknowledges and agrees that County’s obligation to provide the FILOT incentive may end, and 
this Fee Agreement may be terminated by the County, at the County’s sole discretion, if the Company 
ceases operations at the Project.  For purposes of this Section, “ceases operations” means closure of the 
facility or the cessation of production and shipment of products to customers for a continuous period of 
twelve (12) months.  The provisions of Section 4.03 hereof relating to retroactive payments shall apply, if 
applicable, if this Fee Agreement is terminated in accordance with this Section prior to the end of the 
Investment Period.  Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agrees that if this Fee Agreement is 
terminated pursuant to this subsection, that under no circumstance shall the County be required to refund 
or pay any monies to the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates. 

Section 5.02  Rights to Inspect 
 

The Company agrees that the County and its authorized agents shall have the right at all reasonable 
times and upon prior reasonable notice to enter upon and examine and inspect the Project. The County and 
its authorized agents shall also be permitted, at all reasonable times and upon prior reasonable notice, to 
have access to examine and inspect the Company’s South Carolina property tax returns, as filed. The 
aforesaid rights of examination and inspection shall be exercised only upon such reasonable and necessary 
terms and conditions as the Company shall prescribe, and shall be subject to the provisions of Section 5.03 
hereof. 

Section 5.03  Confidentiality 
 

The County acknowledges and understands that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates may 
utilize confidential and proprietary processes and materials, services, equipment, trade secrets, and 
techniques (herein “Confidential Information”). In this regard, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates 
may clearly label any Confidential Information delivered to the County “Confidential Information.”  The 
County agrees that, except as required by law, neither the County nor any employee, agent, or contractor 
of the County shall disclose or otherwise divulge any such clearly labeled Confidential Information to any 
other person, firm, governmental body or agency, or any other entity unless specifically required to do so 
by law.  Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledge that the County is subject to the 
South Carolina Freedom of Information Act, and, as a result, must disclose certain documents and 
information on request, absent an exemption. In the event that the County is required to disclose any 
Confidential Information obtained from the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates to any third party, the 
County agrees to provide the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates with as much advance notice as is 
reasonably possible of such requirement before making such disclosure, and to cooperate reasonably with 
any attempts by the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates to obtain judicial or other relief from such 
disclosure requirement. 

Section 5.04  Limitation of County’s Liability 
 

Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, any financial obligation the County may incur 
hereunder, including for the payment of money, shall not be deemed to constitute a pecuniary liability or a 



 

14 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

debt or general obligation of the County; provided, however, that nothing herein shall prevent the Company 
from enforcing its rights hereunder by suit for mandamus or specific performance. 

Section 5.05  Mergers, Reorganizations and Equity Transfers 
 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges that any mergers, reorganizations 
or consolidations of the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates may cause the Project to become ineligible 
for negotiated fees in lieu of taxes under the FILOT Act absent compliance by the Company and such 
Sponsor Affiliates with the Transfer Provisions; provided that, to the extent provided by Section 12-44-120 
of the FILOT Act or any successor provision, any financing arrangements entered into by the Company or 
any Sponsor Affiliates with respect to the Project and any security interests granted by the Company or any 
Sponsor Affiliates in connection therewith shall not be construed as a transfer for purposes of the Transfer 
Provisions.  Notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, it is not intended in this Fee 
Agreement that the County shall impose transfer restrictions with respect to the Company, any Sponsor 
Affiliates or the Project as are any more restrictive than the Transfer Provisions. 

Section 5.06  Indemnification Covenants 
 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Fee Agreement or in any other agreements 
with the County, the Company agrees to indemnify, defend and save the County, its County Council 
members, elected officials, officers, employees, servants and agents (collectively, the “Indemnified 
Parties”) harmless against and from all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm or corporation arising 
from the conduct or management of, or from any work or thing done on the Project or the Land by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, their members, officers, shareholders, employees, servants, contractors, 
and agents during the term of this Fee Agreement, and, the Company further, shall indemnify, defend and 
save the Indemnified Parties harmless against and from all claims arising during the term of this Fee 
Agreement from (i) entering into and performing its obligations under this Fee Agreement, (ii) any 
condition of the Project, (iii) any breach or default on the part of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in 
the performance of any of its obligations under this Fee Agreement, (iv) any act of negligence of the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate or its agents, contractors, servants, employees or licensees, (v) any act 
of negligence of any assignee or lessee of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, or of any agents, 
contractors, servants, employees or licensees of any assignee or lessee of the Company or any Sponsor 
Affiliate, or (vi) any environmental violation, condition, or effect with respect to the Project.  The Company 
shall indemnify, defend and save the County harmless from and against all costs and expenses incurred in 
or in connection with any such claim arising as aforesaid or in connection with any action or proceeding 
brought thereon, and upon notice from the County, the Company shall defend it in any such action, 
prosecution or proceeding with legal counsel acceptable to the County (the approval of which shall not be 
unreasonably withheld). 

(b) Notwithstanding the fact that it is the intention of the parties that the Indemnified Parties 
shall not incur pecuniary liability by reason of the terms of this Fee Agreement, or the undertakings required 
of the County hereunder, by reason of the granting of the FILOT, by reason of the execution of this Fee 
Agreement, by the reason of the performance of any act requested of it by the Company or any Sponsor 
Affiliate, or by reason of the County’s relationship to the Project or by the operation of the Project by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, including all claims, liabilities or losses arising in connection with the 
violation of any statutes or regulations pertaining to the foregoing, nevertheless, if the County or any of the 
other Indemnified Parties should incur any such pecuniary liability, then in such event the Company shall 
indemnify, defend and hold them harmless against all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm or 
corporation, arising out of the same, and all costs and expenses incurred in connection with any such claim 
or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice, the Company shall defend 
them in any such action or proceeding with legal counsel acceptable to the County (the approval of which 



 

15 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

shall not be unreasonably withheld); provided, however, that such indemnity shall not apply to the extent 
that any such claim is attributable to (i) the grossly negligent acts or omissions or willful misconduct of the 
County, its agents, officers or employees, or (ii) any breach of this Fee Agreement by the County. 

(c) Notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the above-referenced 
covenants insofar as they pertain to costs, damages, liabilities or claims by any Indemnified Party resulting 
from any of the above-described acts of or failure to act by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, shall 
survive any termination of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 5.07  Qualification in State 
 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates warrant that it is duly qualified to transact business 
in the State, and covenants that it will continue to be so qualified so long as it operates any portion of the 
Project. 

Section 5.08  No Liability of County’s Personnel 
 

All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County contained herein 
shall be deemed to be covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County and shall 
be binding upon any member of the County Council or any elected official, officer, agent, servant or 
employee of the County only in his or her official capacity and not in his or her individual capacity, and no 
recourse shall be had for the payment of any moneys hereunder against any member of the governing body 
of the County or any elected official, officer, agent, servants or employee of the County and no recourse 
shall be had against any member of the County Council or any elected official, officer, agent, servant or 
employee of the County for the performance of any of the covenants and agreements of the County herein 
contained or for any claims based thereon except solely in their official capacity. 

Section 5.09  Assignment, Leases or Transfers 
 

The County agrees that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates may at any time (a) transfer all or 
any of their rights and interests under this Fee Agreement or with respect to all or any part of the Project, 
or (b) enter into any lending, financing, leasing, security, or similar arrangement or succession of such 
arrangements with any financing or other entity with respect to this Fee Agreement or all or any part of the 
Project, including without limitation any sale-leaseback, equipment lease, build-to-suit lease, synthetic 
lease, nordic lease, defeased tax benefit or transfer lease, assignment, sublease or similar arrangement or 
succession of such arrangements, regardless of the identity of the income tax owner of such portion of the 
Project, whereby the transferee in any such arrangement leases the portion of the Project in question to the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate or operates such assets for the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate or is 
leasing the portion of the Project in question from the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate.  In order to 
preserve the FILOT incentive afforded hereunder with respect to any portion of the Project so transferred, 
leased, financed, or otherwise affected: (i) except in connection with any transfer to an Affiliate of the 
Company or of any Sponsor Affiliate, or transfers, leases, or financing arrangements pursuant to clause (b) 
above (as to which such transfers the County hereby consents), the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, 
as applicable, shall obtain the prior consent or subsequent ratification of the County which consent or 
subsequent ratification may be granted by the County in its sole discretion; (ii) except when a financing 
entity which is the income tax owner of all or part of the Project is the transferee pursuant to clause (b) 
above and such financing entity assumes in writing the obligations of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, 
as the case may be, hereunder, or when the County consents in writing, no such transfer shall affect or 
reduce any of the obligations of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates hereunder; (iii) to the extent the 
transferee or financing entity shall become obligated to make FILOT Payments hereunder, the transferee 
shall assume the then current basis of, as the case may be, the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates (or prior 



 

16 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

transferee) in the portion of the Project transferred; (iv) the Company or applicable Sponsor Affiliate, 
transferee or financing entity shall, within sixty (60) days thereof, furnish or cause to be furnished to the 
County and the Department a true and complete copy of any such transfer agreement; and (v) the Company, 
the Sponsor Affiliates and the transferee shall comply with all other requirements of the Transfer 
Provisions. 

Subject to County consent when required under this Section, and at the expense of the Company or 
any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, the County agrees to take such further action or execute such 
further agreements, documents, and instruments as may be reasonably required to effectuate the assumption 
by any such transferee of all or part of the rights of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate under this Fee 
Agreement and/or any release of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate pursuant to this Section.   

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges that such a transfer of an interest 
under this Fee Agreement or in the Project may cause all or part of the Project to become ineligible for the 
FILOT benefit afforded hereunder or result in penalties under the FILOT Act absent compliance by the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the Transfer Provisions.   

Section 5.10  Administration Expenses 
 

The Company agrees to pay any Administration Expenses to the County when and as they shall 
become due, but in no event later than the date which is the earlier of any payment date expressly provided 
for in this Fee Agreement or the date which is forty-five (45) days after receiving written notice from the 
County, accompanied by such supporting documentation as may be necessary to evidence the County’s or 
Indemnified Party’s right to receive such payment, specifying the nature of such expense and requesting 
payment of same. 

Section 5.11  Priority Lien Status 
 

The County’s right to receive FILOT Payments hereunder shall have a first priority lien status 
pursuant to Sections 12-44-90(E) and (F) of the FILOT Act and Chapters 4, 49, 51, 53, and 54 of Title 12 
of the Code. 

Section 5.12  Interest; Penalties 
 

In the event the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate should fail to make any of the payments to the 
County required under this Fee Agreement, then the item or installment so in default shall continue as an 
obligation of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate until the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate shall 
have fully paid the amount, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agree, as applicable, to pay the 
same with interest thereon at a rate, unless expressly provided otherwise herein and in the case of FILOT 
payments, of 5% per annum, compounded monthly, to accrue from the date on which the payment was due 
and, in the case of FILOT Payments, at the rate for non-payment of ad valorem taxes under State law and 
subject to the penalties the law provides until payment. 
 
Section 5.13  Sponsor Affiliates 
 

The County hereby authorizes the Company to designate, from time to time, other Sponsors or 
Sponsor Affiliates pursuant to the provisions of Sections 12-44-30(19) or (20), respectively, and Section 
12-44-130 of the Simplified FILOT Act, and hereby preapproves, as Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates, 
Persons who join with the Company and other Co-Investors and make investments with respect to the 
Project, or who participate in the financing of such investments, who agree to be bound by the terms and 
provisions of this Agreement and who shall be Affiliates of Company or other Sponsors or Sponsor 



 

17 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

Affiliates, or other Persons described in Section 8.02 hereof.  All other Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates who 
otherwise meet the requirements of Section 12-44-30 (19) or (20) and Section 12-44-130 of the Simplified 
FILOT Act must be approved by the County in writing.  To the extent that the aggregate investment in the 
Project by the end of the Project Commitment Period by all Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates exceeds Five 
Million Dollars ($5,000,000), to the extent permitted by Section 12-44-30(19) of the Simplified FILOT 
Act, all investment by such Sponsors and Sponsor Affiliates during the Investment Period shall qualify for 
the FILOT pursuant to Section 5.01 of this Agreement (subject to the other conditions set forth therein) 
regardless of whether each such entity invested amounts equal to the Investment Commitment by the end 
of the Investment Period.  Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate shall provide the County and the Department of 
Revenue with written notice of any other Sponsor or Sponsor Affiliate designated pursuant to this Section 
8.04 within ninety (90) days after the end of the calendar year during which any such Sponsor or Sponsor 
Affiliate has placed in service property to be used in connection with the Project, all in accordance with 
Section 12-44-130(B) of the Simplified FILOT Act.  The parties agree that, if any Sponsor or Sponsor 
Affiliate ceases to become party to this Agreement, the Agreement shall continue to remain in effect with 
respect to any remaining Sponsors or Sponsor Affiliates. 

 
[End of Article V] 

  



 

18 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

 
ARTICLE VI 

 
DEFAULT 

 
Section 6.01  Events of Default 
 

The following shall be “Events of Default” under this Fee Agreement, and the term “Event of 
Default” shall mean, whenever used with reference to this Fee Agreement, any one or more of the following 
occurrences: 

(a) Failure by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate to make the FILOT Payments described 
in Section 4.01 hereof, or any other amounts payable to the County under this Fee Agreement when due, 
which failure shall not have been cured within thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice thereof 
from the County; provided, however, that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall be entitled to all 
redemption rights granted by applicable statutes; or 

(b) A representation or warranty made by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate hereunder 
which is deemed materially incorrect when deemed made; or  

(c) Failure by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate to perform any of the terms, conditions, 
obligations, or covenants hereunder (other than those under (a) above), which failure shall continue for a 
period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the County to the Company and such Sponsor Affiliate 
specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, unless the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate 
shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is diligently pursuing such action until 
the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be extended to cover such additional period 
during which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate is diligently pursuing corrective action; or 

(d) Failure by the County to perform any of the terms, conditions, obligations, or covenants 
hereunder, which failure shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the 
Company to the County and any Sponsor Affiliates specifying such failure and requesting that it be 
remedied, unless the County shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is diligently 
pursuing such action until the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be extended to 
cover such additional period during which the County is diligently pursuing corrective action. 
 
Section 6.02  Remedies Upon Default 
 

(a) Whenever any Event of Default by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate (the “Defaulting 
Entity”) shall have occurred and shall be continuing, the County may take any one or more of the following 
remedial actions as to the Defaulting Entity, only: 

(i) terminate this Fee Agreement; or 
 

(ii) take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to 
collect the amounts due hereunder.   

In no event shall the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate be liable to the County or otherwise for 
monetary damages resulting from the Company’s (together with any Sponsor Affiliates) failure to meet the 
Contract Minimum Investment Requirement other than as expressly set forth in this Fee Agreement. 



 

19 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

 In addition to all other remedies provided herein, the failure to make FILOT Payments shall give 
rise to a lien for tax purposes as provided in Section 12-44-90 of the FILOT Act.  In this regard, and 
notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the County may exercise the remedies that 
general law (including Title 12, Chapter 49 of the Code) provides with regard to the enforced collection of 
ad valorem taxes to collect any FILOT Payments due hereunder. 

(b) Whenever any Event of Default by the County shall have occurred or shall be continuing, 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate may take one or more of the following actions: 

(i) bring an action for specific enforcement; 
 

(ii) terminate this Fee Agreement as to the acting party; or 
 

(iii) in case of a materially incorrect representation or warranty, take such action as is 
appropriate, including legal action, to recover its damages, to the extent allowed by law. 

Section 6.03  Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Expenses and Other Expenses 
 

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, 
should the County be required to employ attorneys or incur other reasonable expenses for the collection of 
payments due hereunder or for the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation or 
agreement, the County shall be entitled, within thirty (30) days of demand therefor, to reimbursement of 
the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable expenses so incurred.   

Section 6.04  No Waiver 
 

No failure or delay on the part of any party hereto in exercising any right, power, or remedy 
hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right, power, 
or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power, or remedy 
hereunder. No waiver of any provision hereof shall be effective unless the same shall be in writing and 
signed by the waiving party hereto. 
 

[End of Article VI] 
  



 

20 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

 
ARTICLE VII 

 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
Section 7.01  Notices 
 

Any notice, election, demand, request, or other communication to be provided under this Fee 
Agreement shall be effective when delivered to the party named below or when deposited with the United 
States Postal Service, certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows (or 
addressed to such other address as any party shall have previously furnished in writing to the other party), 
except where the terms hereof require receipt rather than sending of any notice, in which case such provision 
shall control: 

 
If to the Company: 
 
                                                     
Attn:                                            
                                                     
                                                     
 
With a copy to: 
 
Stephanie Yarbrough 
Womble Bond Dickinson (US) LLP 
5 Exchange Street 
Charleston, South Carolina 29401 
 
If to the County: 
 

 Anderson County 
Attn:  County Administrator 

 P.O. Box 8002  
Anderson, South Carolina 29622 
 
With a copy to: 
 
Anderson County Attorney 

 P.O. Box 8002  
Anderson, South Carolina 29622 

 
Section 7.02  Binding Effect 
 

This Fee Agreement and each document contemplated hereby or related hereto shall be binding 
upon and inure to the benefit of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, the County, and their respective 
successors and assigns.  In the event of the dissolution of the County or the consolidation of any part of the 
County with any other political subdivision or the transfer of any rights of the County to any other such 
political subdivision, all of the covenants, stipulations, promises, and agreements of this Fee Agreement 
shall bind and inure to the benefit of the successors of the County from time to time and any entity, officer, 
board, commission, agency, or instrumentality to whom or to which any power or duty of the County has 
been transferred. 



 

21 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

Section 7.03  Counterparts 
 

This Fee Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and all of the counterparts 
taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. 

Section 7.04  Governing Law 
 

This Fee Agreement and all documents executed in connection herewith shall be construed in 
accordance with and governed by the laws of the State. 

Section 7.05  Headings 
 

The headings of the articles and sections of this Fee Agreement are inserted for convenience only 
and shall not be deemed to constitute a part of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 7.06  Amendments 
 

The provisions of this Fee Agreement may only be modified or amended in writing by any 
agreement or agreements entered into between the parties. 

Section 7.07  Further Assurance 
 

From time to time, and at the expense of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, the County 
agrees to execute and deliver to the Company and any such Sponsor Affiliates such additional instruments 
as the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates may reasonably request and as are authorized by law and 
reasonably within the purposes and scope of the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement to effectuate the 
purposes of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 7.08  Invalidity; Change in Laws 
 

In the event that the inclusion of property as Economic Development Property or any other issue is 
unclear under this Fee Agreement, the County hereby expresses its intention that the interpretation of this 
Fee Agreement shall be in a manner that provides for the broadest inclusion of property under the terms of 
this Fee Agreement and the maximum incentive permissible under the FILOT Act, to the extent not 
inconsistent with any of the explicit terms hereof.  If any provision of this Fee Agreement is declared illegal, 
invalid, or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions hereof shall be unimpaired, and such 
illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision shall be reformed to effectuate most closely the legal, valid, and 
enforceable intent thereof and so as to afford the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the maximum 
benefits to be derived herefrom, it being the intention of the County to offer the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates the strongest inducement possible, within the provisions of the FILOT Act, to locate the Project 
in the County.  In case a change in the FILOT Act or South Carolina laws eliminates or reduces any of the 
restrictions or limitations applicable to the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates and the FILOT incentive, 
the parties agree that the County will give expedient and full consideration to reformation of this Fee 
Agreement, and, if the County Council so decides, to provide the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with 
the benefits of such change in the FILOT Act or South Carolina laws. 

Section 7.09  Termination by Company 
 

The Company is authorized to terminate this Fee Agreement at any time with respect to all or part 
of the Project upon providing the County with thirty (30) days’ written notice; provided, however, that (i) 
any monetary obligations existing hereunder and due and owing at the time of termination to a party hereto 



 

22 
 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

(including without limitation any amounts owed with respect to Section 4.03 hereof); and (ii) any provisions 
which are intended to survive termination shall survive such termination. In the year following such 
termination, all property shall be subject to ad valorem taxation or such other taxation or fee in lieu of 
taxation that would apply absent this Fee Agreement. The Company’s obligation to make FILOT Payments 
under this Fee Agreement shall terminate in the year following the year of such termination pursuant to this 
section. 

Section 7.10  Entire Understanding 
 

This Fee Agreement expresses the entire understanding and all agreements of the parties hereto 
with each other, and neither party hereto has made or shall be bound by any agreement or any representation 
to the other party which is not expressly set forth in this Fee Agreement or in certificates delivered in 
connection with the execution and delivery hereof. 

Section 7.11  Waiver 
 

Either party may waive compliance by the other party with any term or condition of this Fee 
Agreement only in a writing signed by the waiving party. 

Section 7.12  Business Day 
 

In the event that any action, payment, or notice is, by the terms of this Fee Agreement, required to 
be taken, made, or given on any day which is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday in the jurisdiction in 
which the person obligated to act is domiciled, such action, payment, or notice may be taken, made, or 
given on the following business day with the same effect as if given as required hereby, and no interest 
shall accrue in the interim. 

 
[End of Article VII] 

 



 

 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council, has caused 

this Fee Agreement to be executed in its name and behalf by the  
Chair of County Council and to be attested by the County Administrator and the Clerk of the County 
Council; and the Company has caused this Fee Agreement to be executed by its duly authorized officer, all 
as of the Effective Date. 
 
 
 
 ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
(SEAL) By:_______________________________________ 
  Tommy Dunn   
  Chair of County Council 
 
 
  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to County Council  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 
 
 

[Signature Page 1 to Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement] 

 
 
  



 

 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

 Project Fiddler 
 
        
 By:         
 Its:         

 

 

 

[Signature Page 2 to Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement] 

 

 



 

A-1 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

 
 

171 Alliance Parkway, Williamston 
 
 
 
 
 
 

101 Clemson Research Blvd., Anderson



 

B-1 
WBD (US) 56372531v1 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 

INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 
 
 

 I __________, the __________ of __________ (the “Company”), do hereby certify in connection 
with Section 4.03 of the Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement dated as of __________, 20__ between Anderson 
County, South Carolina and the Company (the “Fee Agreement”), as follows: 
 
 (1) The total investment made by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates in the Project 
during the calendar year ending December 31, 20__ was $___________. 
 
 (2) The cumulative total investment made by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates in the 
Project from the period beginning __________, 20__ (that is, the beginning date of the Investment Period) 
and ending December 31, 20__, is $__________. 
 
 All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Fee 
Agreement. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this _____ day of __________, 20__. 
 
 
             
      Name:       
      Its:       

 
 



  
 

NPGVL1:2135102.2  

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-030 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF 

A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 
ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK ; 
AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted October 19, 2010 by Anderson County 
Council, Anderson County entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 
Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, with Greenville County (the 
“Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created therein 
(the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson County and 
Greenville County; and 
 

WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Greenville County, it is now 
desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain parcel(s) in Greenville County;  
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Anderson County, it is now 
desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain parcels in Anderson County;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that: 
 
 1.  (i) Exhibit A to the Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include the 
property located in Greenville County described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and (ii) Exhibit B 
to the Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include property located in Anderson County 
described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and, pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon 
adoption by Greenville County of a corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed amended to so 
include such property and Exhibit A and Exhibit B as so revised, without further action by either county. 
 
 2. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council inconsistent 
herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 
 
 3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the rest and 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 
 
 4. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the third reading and enactment 
of by Anderson County Council. 
 
 
 ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this ________ day of _________, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



NPGVL1:2135102.2  

ATTEST:   
 
 
_____________________________      ______________________________   
Rusty Burns       Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator   Anderson County Council 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Renee Watts    
Clerk to Council 
               
  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
 
First Reading: __________________ 
 
Second Reading: ________________ 
 
Third Reading: __________________ 
 
Public Hearing: __________________ 
 
 
 
 



NPGVL1:2135102.2  

Addition to Exhibit A to 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 
between Anderson County and Greenville County 

 
EG Access BP 1 1031, LLC (Project Stagecoach 1) 
 
All that certain piece, parcel or lot of land situate, lying and being in the State of South Carolina, County 
of Greenville, designated as Lot 1, containing 17.59 acres, more or less, and shown more fully on Survey 
for Access 100, LLC, dated December 18, 2019, prepared by 3D Land Surveying, Inc. and recorded in the 
Office of the Greenville county Register of Deeds in Plat Book 1356 at Page 15.  Reference is hereby made 
to said plat for a complete metes and bounds description. 
 
Tax Map No. 0293000100706 
 
 
EGP Access 2 1031, LLC (Project Stagecoach 2) 
 
All that certain piece, parcel or lot of land situate, lying and being in the State of South Carolina, County 
of Greenville, designated as Lot 2, containing 12.31 acres, more or less, and shown more fully on Survey 
for Access 100, LLC, dated December 18, 2019, prepared by 3D Land Surveying, Inc. and recorded in the 
Office of the Greenville county Register of Deeds in Plat Book 1356 at Page 15.  Reference is hereby made 
to said plat for a complete metes and bounds description. 
 
Tax Map No. 0293000100705 
 
 
EG Access BP 3 1031, LLC (Project Stagecoach 3) 
 
All that certain piece, parcel or lot of land situate, lying and being in the State of South Carolina, County 
of Greenville, designated as Lot 3, containing 22.78 acres, more or less, and shown more fully on Survey 
for Access 100, LLC, dated December 18, 2019, prepared by 3D Land Surveying, Inc. and recorded in the 
Office of the Greenville county Register of Deeds in Plat Book 1356 at Page 15.  Reference is hereby made 
to said plat for a complete metes and bounds description. 
 
Tax Map No. 0293000100704 
 
 
BRI Augusta Arbor QOZB LP  
 
All that certain piece, parcel or lot of land situate, lying and being in the County of Greenville, State of South 
Carolina, being shown and designated as 15.10 Acres (657,755 sq. ft.), more or less, on a plat prepared by 
Fant, Reichert & Fogleman, Inc. dated April 15, 2019, entitled "Boundary Survey for Augusta Arbor Way 
LLC" recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Greenville County in Plat Book 1341 at Page 28. 
Reference is hereby made to said plat for a more complete metes and bounds description of the property.  
 
LESS, HOWEVER, that portion of the above reference property conveyed unto Greenville County by 
quitclaim deed of Augusta Arbor Way, LLC dated August 21, 2020 and recorded November 2, 2020 in the 
Office of the Register of Deeds for Greenville County in Deed Book 2607 at Page 3274.  
 
Tax Map No. 0593040101334 



NPGVL1:2135102.2  

 
Addition to Exhibit B to 

Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 
Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 

between Anderson County and Greenville County 
 
Anderson Land, LLC (Project Limestone) 
 
ALL that certain piece, parcel of tract of land lying, being and situate in the County of Anderson, State of 
South Carolina on Scotts Bridge Road and being shown as 116.18 acres on that certain plat prepared for Hunt 
Midwest Real Estate Development, Inc., et al. by EAS Professionals, Inc. on December 11, 2020 and having 
the metes and bounds as shown thereon. 
 
TMS No. 144-00-04-002 
 
ALL that certain piece, parcel of tract of land lying, being and situate in the County of Anderson, State of 
South Carolina on Scotts Bridge Road and being shown as 16.69 acres on that certain plat prepared for Hunt 
Midwest Real Estate Development, Inc., et al. by EAS Professionals, Inc. on July 13, 2021 and recorded in 
the Register of Deeds Office for Anderson County in Plat Book S2825 at Page 7 and having the metes and 
bounds as shown thereon. 
 
TMS No. 144-00-04-001 
 
 
South City Holdings, LLC; and Brett R. Baumgarten as Trustee of The Baumgarten Family Trust 
dated June 26, 2001 (Project B4) 
 
ALL that certain lot, tract or parcel of land situated in Garvin Township, Anderson County, South Carolina, 
known as TMS 092-00-06-015, and shown as Tract Number 2 in Plat Slide 178 at Page 3 Anderson County 
Register of Deed, and being more fully described as follows: 
 
Beginning at an iron pin property corner (P.O.B Parcel 1) on the westerly side of U.S. Hwy. 178, which corner 
is common with The Coleman Family, thence with Coleman Family N48°37’15‧W 561.04 feet to a corner, 
thence continuing along The Coleman Family S20°23’28‧W 793.28 feet, thence turning and running along A. 
Richey Ramseur N74°46’17‧W 74.53 feet, thence along Janet Smith Arnold N74°49’11‧W 395.64 feet, thence 
continuing along Janet Smith Arnold N55°02’37‧W 1119.15 feet, thence turning and running along Rosemary 
W. Jones N53°55’26‧E 740.63 to the center of a Branch, thence along the Branch the following calls: 
N78°09’40‧W 53.43 feet, N45°23’21‧W 61.12 feet, S74°19’17‧W 24.05 feet, N56°16’08‧W 181.72 feet, 
N35°15’39‧W 44.56 feet, S28°07’51‧W 20.76 feet, N58°40’58‧W 87.50 feet, N24°50’07‧W 24.38 feet, 
N88°41’16‧W 38.85 feet, N77°33’32‧W 45.79 feet, N85°40’40‧W 70.14 feet to a point in the center of 
Hurricane Creek, thence along the center of Hurricane Creek the following calls: N29°04’06‧E 95.85 feet, 
N62°19’22‧E 40.47 feet, N04°08’25‧E 44.37 feet, thence turning and leaving the center of Hurricane Creek 
and running along Glen Raven Mills S72°27’48‧E 2216.01 feet to an iron pin on the westerly side of U.S. 
Hwy. 178, thence along the westerly side of U.S. Hwy. 178 S20°14’26‧W 585.81 feet to the Point of 
Beginning and containing 40.49 acres (1,763,964 s.f.). 
 
TMS No. 092-00-06-015 
 
ALL that certain lot, tract or parcel of land situated in Garvin Township, Anderson County, South Carolina, 
known as TMS 092-00-06-016, recorded in Plat Book 74 at Page 47 Anderson County Register of Deeds, and 
being more fully described as follows: 



NPGVL1:2135102.2  

 
Beginning at an iron pin property owner corner (P.O.B. Parcel 2) on the westerly side of U.S. Hwy. 178, 
which corner is common with B.C. McConnell, thence with B.C. McConnell N71°18’46‧W 389.77 feet to a 
corner, thence along A. Richey Ramsuer N74°50’21‧W 135.36 feet, thence turning and running along 
Coleman Family N20°23’28‧E 793.28 feet to an iron pin, thence S48°37’15‧E 561.04 feet to an iron pin on 
the westerly side of U.S. Hwy. 178, thence turning and running along the westerly side of U.S. Hwy. 178 
S20°20’00‧W 568.41 feet to the Point of Beginning and containing 8.15 acres (355,187 s.f.). 
 
TMS No. 092-00-06-016 
 
 
COI Anderson Industrial, LLC (Project Amelia – Lot 4) 
 
ALL that certain piece, parcel or tract of land lying, being and situate in Anderson County on Exchange 
Logistics Park Drive and being 34.56 acres, more or less, as shown as Lot 4 on that certain Summary Plat 
entitled “Exchange Logistics Park”, dated October 28, 2021 and prepared by EAS Professionals and having 
according to said plat the metes and bounds shown thereon. 
 
TMS No. 240-00-01-027 (portion of) and TMS No. 240-00-01-010 (portion of) 
 
 
COI Anderson Industrial, LLC (Project Amelia – Lot 5) 
 
ALL that certain piece, parcel or tract of land lying, being and situate in Anderson County on Exchange 
Logistics Park Drive and being 11.1 acres, more or less, as shown as Lot 5 on that certain Summary Plat 
entitled “Exchange Logistics Park”, dated October 28, 2021 and prepared by EAS Professionals and having 
according to said plat the metes and bounds shown thereon. 
 
TMS No. 240-00-01-027 (portion of) and TMS No. 240-00-01-010 (portion of) 
 
 
Decennial SC, LLC (Project Flay) 
 
BEGINNING at a point in the center of U.S. Highway 29 (75’ Right of Way) being the same point as the 
south east corner as shown on that certain Plat recorded in book 872, at page 9-A in the Anderson County 
Register of Deeds and also being the same corner as shown as the South West corner of the lands shown 
on that certain Plat of Lands for Dorothy M. Sullivan recorded in volume 91, page 956 in the Anderson 
County Registry of deeds.  Thence running the following Fourteen (14) courses and distances along the 
center of said U. S. Highway 29.   
 
1.  S 40° 07' 53" W for a distance of 118.56 feet to a point on a line. 
2.  S 42° 49' 09" W for a distance of 118.63 feet to a point on a line. 
3.  S 45° 04' 20" W for a distance of 117.90 feet to a point on a line. 
4.  S 47° 21' 02" W for a distance of 117.29 feet to a point on a line. 
5.  S 49° 50' 07" W for a distance of 113.97 feet to a point on a line. 
6.  S 52° 02' 07" W for a distance of 118.41 feet to a point on a line. 
7.  S 54° 21' 56" W for a distance of 116.73 feet to a point on a line. 
8.  S 57° 10' 10" W for a distance of 123.11 feet to a point on a line. 
9.  S 59° 48' 59" W for a distance of 125.47 feet to a point on a line. 
10. S 62° 02' 33" W for a distance of 112.47 feet to a point on a line. 
11. S 64° 14' 30" W for a distance of 113.75 feet to a point on a line. 



NPGVL1:2135102.2  

12. S 66° 36' 26" W for a distance of 231.79 feet to a point on a line. 
13. S 66° 40' 45" W for a distance of 350.27 feet to a point on a line. 
14. S 67° 00' 55" W for a distance of 304.76 feet to a point on a line. 
 
Thence departing said centerline of U. S. Highway 29, N 37° 36' 36" W running past a found 3/4 inch Iron 
Pipe at 28.77 feet for a total distance of 611.24 feet to the south East corner of Lot 4 as shown on that 
Untitled Plat of 7 Lots recorded in Anderson County Registry of Deeds in Plat Book 42, Page 213, where 
a 3/4 inch was found.  Thence turning North running along the East edge of said Plat, N 11°33’3”E for a 
distance of 462.80 feet to a found 3/4 inch Iron Pipe for corner. Thence, N 53° 28' 10" E for a distance of 
225.05 feet to a found 3/4 inch Iron Pipe for corner. Thence, N 53° 08' 49" E for a distance of 112.12 feet 
to a found 1 inch Iron Pipe for corner. Thence, N 52° 33' 27" E for a distance of 375.89 feet to a found 3/4 
inch Iron Pipe for corner. Thence, N 52° 27' 18" E a distance of 166.46 feet to a found 3/4 inch Iron Pipe 
for corner. Thence, N 52° 42' 25.8" E for a distance of 186.23 feet to a found 3/4 inch Iron Pipe for corner. 
Thence, N 52° 34' 02" E for a distance of 454.13 feet to a found 5/8 inch Iron Rod being the North East 
corner of the subject tract and the North West corner of the lands shown on that certain Plat of Lands for 
Dorothy M. Sullivan recorded in volume 91, page 956 in the Anderson County Registry of deeds. Thence 
running, S 51° 19' 59" E for a distance 684.37 feet past a found 5/ 8 inch Iron Rod being 4.02 feet West of 
the line, then 332.69 feet to a found 5/ 8 inch Iron Rod being on line, then to another found 5/ 8 inch Iron 
Rod at a point 54.10 feet from the centerline of said U. S. Highway 29 and The Point of Beginning, for a 
total distance of 1154.37 feet to the Point of Beginning. Containing 2,179,895 Square Feet or 50.04 Acres 
more or less. 
 
TMS No. 099-00-02-006 

BEGINNING at a found 3/4 inch Iron Pipe at the south East corner of Lot 4 as shown on that Untitled Plat 
of 7 Lots recorded in Anderson County Registry of Deeds in Plat Book 42, Page 213.  Thence running 
N37°36’36”W a distance of 28.77 feet to the Centerline of Cleveland Drive.  Thence running through the 
centerline of Cleveland Drive along a curve to the right through an angle of 17°43’07”, with an Arc length 
of 417.20 feet and a radius of 1349.08 feet, and whose chord bears N09°56’36”E for a distance of 415.54 
feet to a point. Thence departing said roadway, N 53° 28' 10" E for a distance of 43.55 feet to found 3/4 
inch Iron Pipe for corner.  Thence run S 11° 33' 30" W a distance of 462.80 feet to the South East corner of 
said Lot 4 and the Point of Beginning a Containing 14,716 Square Feet or 0.34 Acres more or less. 
 
TMS No. 099-01-03-001 

 
Kelley Engineering, LLC (Project Yell) 

ALL that certain piece, parcel of tract of land with improvements thereon lying, being and situate in the 
County of Anderson, State of South Carolina on Easley Hwy (S.C. 8) and being shown as 5.268  
acres(including road r/w) on that certain plat prepared for ECI Properties, LLC by Nu-South Surveying, Inc. 
on December 16, 2021 and recorded in the Register of Deeds Office for Anderson County on January 31, 
2022 in Plat Book S2882 at Page 7 and having the metes and bounds as shown thereon. 
 
TMS # 193-00-15-002 

 

 

 



NPGVL1:2135102.2  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      ) 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
(i) that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of ______________, ______________, and 
______________, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and 
an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council; and (ii) the public 
_______________.   
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Clerk, Anderson County Council 
 
 
Dated: ___________, 2022 
 
 



Ordinance #2022-031 
Page 1 of 3 

Hurricane Road & Pine Lane 

 
Ordinance #2022-031 

 
An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning 
Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 35.16 acres from C-2 (Highway Commercial 
District) to IZD (Innovative Zoning District) on parcels of land, identified as on 
Hurricane Road and Pine Lane in the Denver-Sandy Springs Precinct shown 
in Deed Book 6546 page 302 and Deed Book 6985 page 37. The parcels are 
further identified as TMS #93-00-07-004 and 93-00-07-005. 
 
Whereas, Anderson County, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County 
Council (the “County Council”) has previously adopted Anderson County 
Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance (the “Ordinance”), 
which Ordinance contains the Anderson County Official Zoning Map (the “Map”); 
and, 
 
Whereas, the Ordinance contains provisions providing for the amendment of the 
Map; and, 
 
Whereas, County Council desires to amend the Map by adopting a zoning map 
amendment from C-2 to IZD for +/- 35.16 acres of TMS #93-00-07-004 and 93-00-07-
005 described above; and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Planning Commission has held a duly advertised 
Public Hearing on July 12, 2022, during which it reviewed the proposed rezoning from 
to C-2 to IZD for +/- 35.16 acres of TMS #93-00-07-004 and 93-00-07-005 described 
above; and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Council has duly advertised and held a Public 
Hearing on August 16, 2022 regarding said amendment of the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map:  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
  



Ordinance #2022-031 
Page 2 of 3 

Hurricane Road & Pine Lane 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 
assembled, that: 
 
 

1. The Anderson County Council hereby finds that this proposed rezoning is 
consistent with the Anderson County Comprehensive Plan and in accord 
with requirements of the South Carolina Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, 
Article 5. 

 
2. The Anderson County Council hereby amends the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map as previously adopted July 20, 1999, by Anderson 
County Ordinance #99-004 to rezone from C-2 to IZD for +/- 35.16 acres 
of TMS #93-00-07-004 and 93-00-07-005 described above.         

 
3. Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
determination shall not affect the remaining terms and provisions of this 
ordinance, all of which  are hereby deemed separable. 

 
4. All orders, resolutions, and enactments of Anderson County Council 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 
repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 

 
5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and 

after third reading and enactment by Anderson County Council.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance #2022-031 
Page 3 of 3 

Hurricane Road & Pine Lane 
 
 
ATTEST:  Ordinance 2022-031 
 
 
 
_____________________________         __________________________________   
Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Renee D. Watts     
Clerk to Council 
              
   
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
        
 
 
     
Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
1st Reading:      July 19, 2022 
 
2nd Reading:      August 2, 2022 
 
3rd Reading:  August 16, 2022 
 
Public Hearing:  August 16, 2022 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 2  
Anderson County Planning Commission 

Staff Report 
July 12, 2022 

Applicant: One Real Estate Acquisitions, LLC 

Current owner:  Hurricane Creek, LLC 

Property location: Hurricane Rd & Pine Ln 

Precinct: Denver-Sandy Springs 

Council district: 5 

TMS#(s): 93-00-07-004 & -005

Acreage: +/- 35.16

Current zoning: C-2 (Highway Commercial District)

Requested zoning: IZOD (Innovative Zoning District) 

The IZOD Ddistrict is established to allow flexibility in 
development that will result in improved design, character, 
and quality of new developments as well as preserve natural 
and scenic features of open spaces. The Innovative Zoning 
District regulations must encourage innovative site planning 
for residential, commercial, institutional, or industrial 
development within the district. 

Surrounding zoning: North: S-1 (Services District) 
South: R-15 & R-20 (Single-Family Residential District) & S-1 
(Services District) 
East: R-20 (Single-Family Residential District) & C-2 (Highway 
Commercial District) 
West: S-1 (Services District) 

Evaluation: This request is to rezone from C-2 to IZD to develop 360 
apartment units and a commercial space along Hurricane 
Rd. The project is to provide undisturbed buffers along Pine 
Ln and the eastern portion that abuts single family residential 
properties and will provide 45% open space (approximately 
16 acres) with amenities such as a clubhouse, fitness center, 
and community kitchen and office space for apartment 
residents. 

Public outreach: Staff hereby certifies that the required public notification 
actions have been completed, as follows: 
- June 27, 2022: Rezoning notification postcards sent to 167 

property owners within 2,000’ of the subject property; to 
date, staff has received 4 phone calls requesting more 
information.

- May 23, 2022: Rezoning notification signs posted on 
subject property; 



Page 2 of 2  
- June 27, 2022: Planning Commission public hearing 

advertisement published in the Independent-Mail.

Staff recommendation: At the Planning commission Meeting during which the 
rezoning is scheduled to be discussed, staff will present their 
recommendation at that time. 

































Ordinance #2022-032 
Page 1 of 3 
Highway 76 

 
Ordinance #2022-032 

 
An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning 
Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 19.1 acres from C-2 (Highway Commercial 
District) to IZD (Innovative Zoning District) on a parcel of land, identified as 
Highway 76 in the Denver-Sandy Springs Precinct shown in Deed Book 19V 
page 955. The parcel is further identified as TMS #65-00-04-013. 
 
Whereas, Anderson County, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County 
Council (the “County Council”) has previously adopted Anderson County 
Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance (the “Ordinance”), 
which Ordinance contains the Anderson County Official Zoning Map (the “Map”); 
and, 
 
Whereas, the Ordinance contains provisions providing for the amendment of the 
Map; and, 
 
Whereas, County Council desires to amend the Map by adopting a zoning map 
amendment from C-2 to IZD for +/- 19.1 acres of TMS #65-00-04-013 described 
above; and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Planning Commission has held a duly advertised 
Public Hearing on July 12, 2022, during which it reviewed the proposed rezoning from 
C-2 to IZD for +/- 19.1 acres of TMS #65-00-04-013 described above; and, 
 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Council has duly advertised and held a Public 
Hearing on August 16, 2022, regarding said amendment of the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map:  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
  



Ordinance #2022-032 
Page 2 of 3 
Highway 76 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 
assembled, that: 
 
 

1. The Anderson County Council hereby finds that this proposed rezoning is 
consistent with the Anderson County Comprehensive Plan and in accord 
with requirements of the South Carolina Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, 
Article 5. 

 
2. The Anderson County Council hereby amends the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map as previously adopted July 20, 1999, by Anderson 
County Ordinance #99-004 to rezone from C-2 to IZD for +/- 19.1 acres of 
TMS #65-00-04-013 described above.         

 
3. Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
determination shall not affect the remaining terms and provisions of this 
ordinance, all of which  are hereby deemed separable. 

 
4. All orders, resolutions, and enactments of Anderson County Council 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 
repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 

 
5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and 

after third reading and enactment by Anderson County Council.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance #2022-032 
Page 3 of 3 
Highway 76 

 
 
ATTEST:  Ordinance 2022-032 
 
 
 
_____________________________         __________________________________   
Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Renee D. Watts     
Clerk to Council 
              
   
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
        
 
 
     
Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
1st Reading:      July 19, 2022 
 
2nd Reading:      August 2, 2022 
 
3rd Reading:  August 16, 2022 
 
Public Hearing:  August 16, 2022 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 2  
Anderson County Planning Commission 

Staff Report 
July 12, 2022 

Applicant: Jonathan Walker 

Current owner:  Ernest W Garrison Jr 

Property location: Highway 76 

Precinct: Denver-Sandy Springs 

Council district: 4 

TMS#(s): 65-00-04-013

Acreage: +/- 19.1

Current zoning: C-2 (Highway Commercial District)

Requested zoning: IZD (Innovative Zoning District) 

The IZD Ddistrict is established to allow flexibility in 
development that will result in improved design, character, 
and quality of new developments as well as preserve natural 
and scenic features of open spaces. The Innovative Zoning 
District regulations must encourage innovative site planning 
for residential, commercial, institutional, or industrial 
development within the district. 

Surrounding zoning: North: I-1 (Industrial District) 
South: C-2 (Highway Commercial District) 
East: C-2 (Highway Commercial District) & I-1 (Industrial 
District) 
West: C-2 (Highway Commercial District) 

Evaluation: This request is to rezone from C-2 to IZD to develop 176 
apartment units and a commercial space along Highway 
76. The project will provide 62.1% open space with a
clubhouse and pool/playground area.

Public outreach: Staff hereby certifies that the required public notification 
actions have been completed, as follows: 
- June 27, 2022: Rezoning notification postcards sent to 60 

property owners within 2,000’ of the subject property; to 
date, staff has received 1 phone call requesting more 
information.

- June 27, 2022: Rezoning notification signs posted on 
subject property;

- June 27, 2022: Planning Commission public hearing 
advertisement published in the Independent-Mail. 



Page 2 of 2   
Staff recommendation: At the Planning commission Meeting during which the 

rezoning is scheduled to be discussed, staff will present their 
recommendation at that time. 







1 
 

STATEMENT OF INTENT 
 
 

for 
 
 

The Springs at Clemson Blvd 
(Innovative Zoning District “IZD” Rezoning Request) 

 
 

for 
 
 

APPLICANT 
Idea River, LLC 

174 East Main St. Suite 603 
Spartanburg, SC 29306 

Jonathan Walker 
864.940.3359 

Jonathanwalker3@gmail.com 
 

Engineer 
Britt, Peters & Associates, Inc. 

101 Falls Park Drive 
Suite 601 

Greenville, SC 29601 
John A. Connelly, PE 

864-271-8869 
jconnelly@brittpeters.com 

 
 

May 31, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:Jonathanwalker3@gmail.com
mailto:Jonathanwalker3@gmail.com
mailto:jconnelly@brittpeters.com
mailto:jconnelly@brittpeters.com


2 
 

I. PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 
 
The Springs at Clemson Boulevard(project) consists of one parcel of land located on Hwy 76, 
Pendleton directly across from Chapman Rd. The project is +/- 19.09 acres and is made up of 
the following parcel: 

1. TMS #650004013 - 19.09 acres (831,560.4 square feet) parcel located in 
Anderson County on Hwy 76, Pendleton.  The property is currently owned by 
Ernest W Garrison, Jr. 

Water will be provided by Sandy Springs Water District and sewer by Anderson County 
Wastewater. 
 

II. DEVELOPMENT OVERVIEW 
 
The project development plan is to rezone the one tract to utilize the Innovative Zoning District 
(IZD) zoning classification. The development will consist of two different access points off Hwy 
76, applications for driveway and utility encroachment permits will be submitted for review and 
approval by SCDOT. A traffic study will be submitted to SCDOT to determine potential impact to 
Hwy 76 traffic flow and to ensure proper design of access and egress. The proposed 
development will incorporate both residential and commercial uses.  The residential 
component will be comprised of (8) three story apartment buildings with private pool, 
playground, clubhouse, and open space for resident use situated on approx. 14.44 acres of the 
19.09 overall parcel.  Each apartment building will be approximately 10,720 square feet per 
floor and provide a total of (176) +/- units each with a mix of 1,2-, and 3-bedroom 
configurations.  Site coverage for the residential portion of the development will be approx. 
37.9%.  Common areas and open space dispersed throughout the site (not including detention 
pond) will total approx. 390,612.97 sf or 62.1%.         
 
The commercial component of the development will be a minimum 4.65-acre subdivided 
portion located adjacent to Hwy 76 at the southern end of the parcel.  A drive entrance to serve 
this portion of the site will connect directly to Hwy 76 then cross the parcel to further serve the 
residential component. The specific commercial use TBD.   A buffer between the commercial 
and residential lots will be achieved through placement of the detention pond directly between 
the two uses.  The closest apartment building will be approx. 250’ from the commercial lot line. 
 
A minimum 25’ building setback will be established along all exterior property lines.  However, 
where the commercial parcel adjoins Hwy 76 a 50’ minimum setback will be established 
consistent with Anderson County requirements for nonresidential use along Arterial Roads.  
 
 

III. DENSITY & PHASING 
 



3 
 

The overall project will consist of 176 +/- garden style apartments and a minimum of 4.65 acres 
of commercial space fronting Hwy 76.  The residential component will be comprised of (8) three 
story apartment buildings with private pool, playground, clubhouse, and open space for 
resident use situated on approx. 14.44 acres of the 19.09 overall parcel.  Each apartment 
building will be approximately 10,720 square feet per floor and provide a total of (22) units 
each with a mix of 1,2-, and 3-bedroom configurations.  Site coverage for the residential portion 
of the development will be approx. 37.9%.  Common areas and open space dispersed 
throughout the site (not including detention pond) will total approx. 390,612.97 sf or 62.10%. 
The commercial component of the development will be a minimum 4.65 acres subdivided 
portion located adjacent to Hwy 76 at the southern end of the parcel.  A drive entrance to serve 
this portion of the site will connect directly to Hwy 76 then cross the parcel to further serve the 
residential component. The specific commercial use TBD.   A buffer between the commercial 
and residential lots will be achieved through placement of the detention pond directly between 
the two uses.  The closest apartment building will be approx. 250’ from the commercial lot line. 
The exact locations and layout of the residential and commercial pieces will be detailed out in 
the Final Development Plan. 
 
IV. AMENITIES, LANDSCAPING, BUFFERS 

 
The proposed development will have approximately 62.10% (8.97 acres) of common areas and 
open space that will be dispersed throughout the site (not including detention pond). A 
minimum 25’ building setback will be established along all exterior property lines.  However, 
where the commercial parcel adjoins Hwy 76 a 50’ minimum setback will be established 
consistent with Anderson County requirements for nonresidential use along Arterial Roads. The 
residential component may consist of pool, playground, clubhouse, and open space for the 
residents.  
 

a. Pond Maintenance and Landscaping – The detention pond serving the development will 
be in the far south end of the property and will not be visible from Hwy 76 due to 
topography.  Only two sides of the pond will actually “front” the interior of the 
development and the exterior facing sides will be buffered per Section 38-122 Anderson 
County Ordinance.  The entire pond will be fenced and screened with sufficient 
landscaping to reduce the overall visual impact to residents and commercial visitors to 
the site.  Landscaping will blend with the overall theme of the development and provide 
a positive visual appearance.  Pond inspection and maintenance will be conducted 
routinely and as required by the Anderson County Permanent Stormwater System 
Maintenance and Responsibility Agreement to ensure that the facilities are in good 
working order and performing their design functions. 

 
V. PUBLIC UTILITIES 

 
Water – The site is under the jurisdiction of Sandy Springs Water District.  Chris 
Brown with SSWD has confirmed that there is a 12” water main along Hwy 76 (same 
side as subject parcel) with available and adequate capacity to serve the proposed 



4 
 

development.  All new water mains built within the project will be built to SSWD 
(public) standards and turned over to Sandy Springs Water District to own and 
maintain.   
 
Sewer - The site is under the jurisdiction of Anderson County Wastewater 
Department.  Tim Haynes, Wastewater Department Engineer, has confirmed that a 
sewer extension will be required for the development to connect to their system.  
Mr. Haynes further indicated that the system currently has available and adequate 
capacity to accept the estimated 40,000 gpd flow from the development.  The 
developer plans to construct the required extension concurrent with the overall 
development project.  Once completed, inspected, and accepted by the AHJ, the 
developer will convey ownership of the extension to Anderson County.  A Flow 
Request Application along with engineer sealed flow calculations has been submitted 
for review and formal approval by Anderson County Wastewater Department.     

 
 

Natural Gas – The development would be served by Fort Hill Natural Gas.  Kayla 
Ward, Business Development Assistant with FHNG, has confirmed that there is a 4” 
natural gas distribution main along Hwy 76 with sufficient volume and pressure to 
support the proposed development.   
 
Fire – The site is in the jurisdiction of the Anderson County Fire Protection 
Commission and within the coverage area of the Sandy Springs Station #26.  
Preliminary Site Plans for the proposed development have been reviewed by Fire 
Marshal Duffie Cochran.  Marshal Cochran has confirmed that they can and will 
provide fire protection and emergency service to the site and that existing hydrants 
in the area should be sufficient to the proposed project.  Final layout regarding fire 
lane access will be coordinated through the Fire Marshal’s office for review and 
formal approval.   
 
Solid Waste – the residential section will have a designated garbage coral that will 
fenced in and not visible from the road or interior of the development.  Garbage 
collection for the proposed development will be handled by private hauler.  The 
development will contract with Waste Management for weekly pickup and hauling to 
the Starr C&D Landfill. 
 
Stormwater – The stormwater management system for the site will treat for both 
water quantity and water quality and meet all requirements of Anderson County and 
SCDHEC to satisfy the appropriate standards of the Clean Water Act.  Pre vs. Post 
runoff will be managed through onsite detention consisting of a dry pond system.  All 
stormwater BMP’s will be inspected and maintained routinely.     
 
Roads – US Hwy 76 is under SCDOT jurisdiction.  Applications for driveway and utility 
encroachment permits will be submitted for review and approval by SCDOT The 



5 
 

proposed development will have (2) access points to Hwy 76.  A traffic study will be 
submitted to SCDOT to determine potential impact to Hwy 76 traffic flow and to 
ensure proper design of access and egress. 
 

VI. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
 

1. Permitted Uses: This project will consist of residential and commercial utilization  
2. Maximum Number of Units: Residential – 176 units and Commercial – TBD to fit 

area needs and surrounding businesses 
3. Building Setbacks: 

All proposed setbacks for the development are as follows: 
- A minimum 25’ building setback will be established along all exterior property 

lines.  However, 
- Where the commercial parcel adjoins Hwy 76 a 50’ minimum setback will be 

established consistent with Anderson County requirements for nonresidential use along 
Arterial Roads.  

- The closest apartment building will be approximately 250’ from the commercial 
lot line. 
      4. Residential Construction and Maintenance: No mobile homes, trailers, campers, or 
tents shall be permitted as permanent dwellings. 
 

4. Public Improvements: No existing sidewalks are located along Hwy 76 – a state-
maintained road. The proposed project should have no impacts to the roads 
service level. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



©
 20

22
 M

icr
os

of
t C

or
po

ra
tio

n ©
 20

22
 M

ax
ar

 ©
CN

ES
 (2

02
2) 

Di
str

ibu
tio

n A
irb

us
 D

S 

HWY 76

CHAPMAN R
OAD

D
ET

EN
TI

O
N

PO
N

D
CLUB HOUSE

POOL/

PLAYGROUND

AREA

C
O

M
M

ER
C

IA
L

PR
O

PE
R

TY
4.

65
± 

AC
R

ES

AP
T 

BL
D

G
 #

1
AP

T 
BL

D
G

 #
2

APT BLDG #3

APT BLDG #5

APT BLDG #4

APT BLDG #6
APT BLDG #7

APT BLDG #8

O
PE

N
SP

AC
E

O
PE

N
SP

AC
E

O
PE

N
SP

AC
E

MAIL
TRASH

COMPACTOR

25
' B

LD
G

 S
/B

25' BLDG S/B

25
' B

LD
G

 S
/B

25' B
LDG S/B

25' BLDG S/B

25
' B

LD
G S

/B

25' BLDG S/B

25' B
LDG S/B

25' BLDG S/B

25' BLDG S/B

25
' B

LD
G S/B

50
' B

LD
G S

/B

50
' B

LD
G S

/B

25
' B

LD
G S

/B

25' BLDG S/B

25
'

TY
P

CLUB HOUSE

POOL/

PLAYGROUNND

AREA

HWY

APT BLDG #3

APT BLDG #5

APT BLDG #4

APT BLDG #6
APT BLDG #7

SP
AC

E

S/BB

25
' B

LD
G S

/B

25' BLDGG SG S/B
G S

BLDG S/B

/B

C
O

M
M

ER
C

IA
L

PR
O

PE
R

TY
4.

65
± 

AC
R

ES

50
' B

LD
G S

/B

WY 76

O
PE

N
SP

AC
E

O
PE

N
SP

AC
E

25
' B

LD
G S

/B

25' BLDG S/B

MAIL
MAIL
MAIL

TRASH

COMPACTOR

COMPACTOR

MPACTOR

MPACTOR

40'

24
'

P N
R S

AB
C

S
O

N
IT

IT
A

T
I

E
.C

TE D
ER

SS

Sh
ee

t T
itl

e:

Sh
ee

t N
um

be
r:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:

D
at

e:

D
ra

w
n 

By
:

Pr
oj

ec
t E

ng
in

ee
r:

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S:

SE
AL

S

06
/1

0/
20

22

22
04

72

JA
C

TA
H

M
PM

N
O

.
D

AT
E

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

0
06

/1
0/

22
IS

SU
E 

FO
R

 P
C

 A
PP

R
O

VA
L

C
P1

PR
O

JE
C

T 
IN

FO
R

M
AT

IO
N

:









 
WBD (US) 56379027v1 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2022-036 
 

TO STATE THE COMMITMENT OF ANDERSON COUNTY TO ENTER 
INTO A FEE AGREEMENT WITH A COMPANY KNOWN FOR THE 
TIME BEING AS “PROJECT FIDDLER,” AND/OR ITS RESPECTIVE 
DESIGNEES OR NOMINEES; TO PROVIDE THE GENERAL TERMS OF 
THE FEE AGREEMENT; TO IDENTIFY THE RESPECTIVE PROJECTS 
FOR PURPOSES OF THE FEE IN LIEU OF TAX SIMPLIFICATION ACT; 
TO STATE THE COMMITMENT OF ANDERSON COUNTY TO PLACE 
THE PROJECT’S SUBJECT PROPERTY IN A MULTI-COUNTY PARK; 
AND TO PROVIDE FOR OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its 

County Council (the “County Council”), is authorized and empowered, under and pursuant to the 
provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act”) and Title 4, Chapter 1 (the “Multi-County 
Park Act”), Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the “Code”), to enter into 
agreements with industry, to offer certain privileges, benefits and incentives as inducements for 
economic development within the County; to acquire, or cause to be acquired, properties as may 
be defined as “projects” in the Act and to enter agreements with the business or industry to 
facilitate the construction, operation, maintenance and improvement of such projects; to enter into 
or allow financing agreements with respect to such projects; and to accept any grants for such 
projects through which powers the industrial and business development of the State will be 
promoted, whereby the industry would pay fees-in-lieu-of taxes (the “FILOT”) with respect to 
qualified projects; through all such powers, the industrial development of the State of South 
Carolina (the “State”) will be promoted and trade developed by inducing manufacturing and 
commercial enterprises to locate or remain in the State and thus utilize and employ the manpower, 
products and resources of the State and benefit the general public welfare the County by providing 
services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; and  

 
WHEREAS, Project Fiddler (a company known to the County and referred to by such 

name for the time being, and referred to herein as the “Company”) has requested that the County 
assist in the acquisition and installation of improvements, fixtures, machinery, equipment, 
furnishings and other tangible personal property to constitute a tooling facility in the County 
(collectively, the “Project”), which Project is result in expected to involve at least $2,500,000 in 
non-exempt investment by the Company by December 31 of the fifth year after the year in which 
any portion of the Project is first placed in service; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Company has requested that the County enter into a FILOT agreement 

(the “Fee Agreement”) with the Company, thereby providing for a certain FILOT with respect to 
the Project; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County has determined on the basis of the information supplied to it by 

the Company that the Project would be a “project” and “economic development property” as such 
terms are defined in the FILOT Act and that the Project would serve the purposes of the FILOT 
Act; and  

 



2 
WBD (US) 56379027v1 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of Section 4-1-170 of the Multi-County Park Act 
and Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution (collectively, the “Multi-County 
Park Authority”), the County intends to cause the site on which the Project will be located, to the 
extent not already therein located, to be in a multi-county industrial and business park (a “Park”) 
established by the County pursuant to a qualifying agreement with an adjoining South Carolina 
county (the “Park Agreement”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the County has determined and found, on the basis of representations of the 

Company, that the Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by 
providing services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; 
that the Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated 
municipality or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of either; that the purposes to 
be accomplished by the Project, i.e., economic development, creation of jobs, and addition to the 
tax base of the County, are proper governmental and public purposes; that the inducement of the 
location of the Project within the County and State is of paramount importance; and that the 
benefits of the Project will be greater than the costs. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, by the County Council as 

follows: 
 
Section 1.  (a) Pursuant to the authority given to County Council by the South 

Carolina Constitution, the Code, the FILOT Act and the Multi-County Park Act, and subject to the 
enactment of required legislative authorizations by the County Council (and the partner county in 
connection with the Park Agreement), and for the purpose of providing development incentives for 
the Project through the payment by the Company of a FILOT with respect to the Project pursuant to 
Section 12-44-40 of the Act, there is hereby authorized to be executed a Fee Agreement between 
the Company and the County. The Fee Agreement shall provide an assessment ratio of 6% for 
Project property and a 5-year investment period to reach investment of $2,500,000, thereby the 
investment period will extend for another 5-years and a 30-year term allowed under the FILOT 
Act. The millage rate for Project property for FILOT purposes shall be fixed for the term of the 
Fee Agreement at the cumulative property tax millage rates levied on behalf of all taxing entities 
within which components of the Project are located as of June 30, 2021, which millage rates were 
332.07 and 328.07. 

 
(b)  The County Council will use its best efforts to ensure that the Project will 

continuously be included within the boundaries of the Park or another qualified multi-county 
industrial or business park in order that the tax benefits contemplated hereunder and afforded by 
the laws of the State for projects located within multi-county industrial or business parks will be 
available to the Company for at least the term of the Fee Agreement. 

 
Section 2.  The provisions, terms and conditions of the Fee Agreement shall be 

prescribed and authorized by ordinance(s) of the County Council, which, to the extent not 
prohibited by law, shall be consistent with the terms of this Resolution. 

 



3 
WBD (US) 56379027v1 

Section 3.  All orders, resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the 
extent of such conflict, hereby repealed. This resolution shall take effect and be in full force from 
and after its passage by the County Council. 

 
Section 4.  The authorization of the execution and delivery of the documents related to 

the FILOT Agreement and all other related documents or obligations of the County is subject to 
the compliance by the County Council with the provisions of the Home Rule Act regarding the 
procedural requirements for adopting ordinances and resolutions. 

 
Section 5.  It is the intention of the County Council that this resolution shall constitute 

an inducement resolution with respect to the Project, within the meaning of the FILOT Act. 
 

DONE in meeting duly assembled this ___ day of ________, 2022. 
 
 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
        
Tommy Dunn 
Chair of County Council 
 
 

 
Attest: 
 
 
      
Renee Watts 
Clerk to County Council 
 
 
Attest: 
 
        
Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R2022-040 
 
A RESOLUTION TO SUPPORT AND RECOGNIZE ANDERSON COUNTY’S 
DESIGNATION OF UPCOUNTRY FIBER, LLC, AS A PREFERRED PARTNER IN 
THEIR RESPECTIVE SERVICE AREA FOR BROADBAND BY APPLYING FOR 
APPLICATIONS FOR FUNDING ASSISTANCE TO UNSERVED AND UNDERSERVED 
AREAS OF ANDERSON COUNTY THROUGH THE SOUTH CAROLINA OFFICE OF 
REGULATORY STAFF; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 
 
 WHEREAS, it is the public policy of this State to encourage and facilitate the development 
and investment in broadband facilities in order to facilitate access to broadband services at all 
locations in the State, as this development is vital and necessary to induce, create, and promote 
industrial and economic development and to create job opportunities, enhance health care, and 
enhance educational advancement in the State; 
 
 WHEREAS, access to the internet is critical to everyday activities including work, 
security, school, healthcare, and entertainment. As technologies and applications improve, 
bandwidth becomes increasingly more important to run them successfully;  
 
 WHEREAS, locations within the County still lack access to broadband service, 
particularly in rural areas where the cost to deploy facilities is significantly higher than in more 
densely populated areas; and 
 

WHEREAS, Upcountry Fiber, LLC is a high-speed fiber internet provider that services 
five counties and was formed with the goal of facilitating the proliferation of high-speed broadband 
internet access to unserved and underserved areas in the Upstate. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE,  be it resolved by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 
 
 1. Because the lack of broadband facilities and services in certain areas deprives 
citizens residing in those areas from access to opportunities, the County needs to take action to 
correct and eliminate discrepancies in access to broadband facilities and services. 
 

 2.  Upcountry Fiber, LLC will build a high-quality fiber to the home network in 
Anderson County to deliver dynamic service speeds to residential and business customers within 
their service area.   
 
 3. Upcountry Fiber, LLC’s collaboration with Anderson County, as represented 
through this resolution and RFP #22-028, will increase the scoring criteria assigned by the South 
Carolina Office of Regulatory Staff, which will increase the potential of funds being used to 
expand the use of broadband in Anderson County. 
 
 4. All orders and resolutions in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such conflict 
only, repealed and rescinded. 



 5. Should any part or portion of this resolution be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such finding shall not affect the remainder 
hereof, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 
 
 6. This resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately upon enactment.  
 
 RESOLVED this 19th day of July 2022, in a meeting duly assembled. 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
              
Rusty Burns      Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator   
 
 
       
       
Renee Watts 
Clerk to County Council 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 
  
 
  
 
  





















 

 

Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District Five 

 
Brett Sanders 

V. Chairman, District Four 

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | www.andersoncountysc.org 
 
 

John B. Wright, Jr. 
District One 

 
Glenn Davis 

District Two 

Ray Graham 
District Three 

 
Jimmy Davis 

District Six 

M. Cindy Wilson 
District Seven 

 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

 
 
 

Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
Planning and Public Works Meeting 

Friday, July 15, 2022, at 12:00 pm 
101 South Main Street 

Anderson, South Carolina 
Anderson County Historical Courthouse Chambers 

Chairwoman Cindy Wilson, Presiding 
 

 
1. Call to Order                                                                                 Chairwoman Cindy Wilson 
 
 
2. Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance                                                      Honorable Brett Sanders 
 
 
3. Development Amenities Agreement                                                          Mr. Jordan Thayer 
 
 
4. Education and Discussion of Grinder Pump Configuration              Mr. Derrick Singleton 
    Versus individual sewer 
 
 
5. Maximum Building Height Elevation                                                        Ms. Alesia Hunter  
         
 
6. Special Exception Zoned Area Chapter 70                                               Ms. Alesia Hunter 
 
 
7. Old Business 
 
 
8. New Business 
 
 
9. Citizen Comments 
 
 
10. Adjournment                                     

 
 


















































































	Agenda CCM July 19, 2022
	Resolution R2022-037 Crescent Anglers
	Resolution R2022-038 Anna Kay/Elizabeth Pamphilon
	7a Ordinance 2022-028 Property Transfer Honea Path
	7b Ordinance 2022-029 Property Transfer City of Belton
	8a Ordinance 2022-015 Codification
	8b Ordinance 2022-025 Project Fiddler
	8c Ordinance 2022-030 2010 Park
	8d Ordinance 2022-031 Hurricane Road 
	8e Ordinance 2022-032 Hwy 76
	9a Resolution 2022-036 Project Fiddler
	9b Resolution 2022-040 Broadband
	10a Bid #22-061 Parker Bowie Convenience Center
	10b Bid #22-062 Cryptocurrency
	12 Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting
	15a Request Anderson Jets Track Club
	15c Request Tackling the Streets
	15d Request Watkins Community Center
	16a Budget Transfers
	16b Special Projects
	16c Paving



